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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

Chairman's Message

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to share with you the Annual Report of Bahrain National
Holding B.S.C. (BNH) for the financial year ended on 31st December 2018.

In 2018, the Bahrain government intensified its efforts to restructure the economy and implement its fiscal
balance program with the aim of a balanced budget by 2022. The key focus areas included reducing
government operational expendilure, streamlining subsidies distribution, improving the efficiency of
government expenditure and simplifying processes. This combined with the USD 10 billion support package
should put the country's finances on a stronger footing. We expect the above steps to result in a challenging
environment in the interim, and the focus of the Group is on maximizing the opportunities presented by the
above, while minimizing any negalive impacts. The Economic Development Board estimated growth rate of
3.4% in real GDP in 2018 and is forecasting a growth rate of 2.8% in 2019.

| am pleased to report that your Group successfully navigaled the market challenges and grew both the top
and bottom-line in FY 2018. This is a commendable achievement given the intensifying competition in the
insurance industry in Bahrain and the increasing turmoil witnessed in the global financial markets, particularly
in the latter half of 2018.

Our insurance subsidiaries not only increased their topline by bagging some of the larger accounts in the
island but were also successful in managing their claims 2018. This is even more creditable in view of the
strong technical reserves maintained by the Group. Insurance reserves were at 109% of net earned premium
compared to 100% in FY17. The Group took several proactive steps in claims control while being careful to
make sure that this does not in any way impact the quality of services our customers expect from us.

Going forward, while competition is likely to persist the market consolidation that took place over the past 2
years should instill some level of pricing discipline in the market. We also expect liquidity conditions to remain
tight in 2019, which means that we need to be increasingly vigilant on counterparty risks across all the
intermediaries and customers the Group deals with. Increasing regulations and associated costs are also
expecled to impact business models. We believe that this environment presents the Group with an
opportunity to pick up market share from weaker players, given our balance sheet strength as well as liquidity
position.

We expect the insurance market growth to accelerate over the medium term, on the back of USD 32.5 billion
of infrastructure and development projects to be completed in the coming years. Apart from the GCC Fund
contribution of USD 7.5 billion, the private sector is expected to invest USD 15 billion with the balance from
government owned entities. This offers a strong foundation for insurance market growth.

While all insurance segments of the Group’s insurance subsidiaries witnessed growth in premiums, we are
particularly pleased with our performance in medical and general insurance, which contributed the most to
the growth. The Group's gross premiums for FY 2018 grew by 16.2% to BD 33.6 million.

Gross underwriting profit increased by 33.6% to BD 4.7 million compared to BD 3.5 million a year earlier. Net
Underwriting profits witnessed a turnaround in 2018 with a profit of BD 724 thousand, compared to a loss of
8D 432 thousand last year.

A 23% increase in the investment portfolio income and lower impairments helped the Group offset the lower
share of associate profits. These profits were achieved while maintaining a relatively liquid portfolio, and in
the face of difficult market conditions particularly in the last quarter of 2018. The Group's Net profit for 2018
of BD 3.5 million rose by 55% from BD 2.3 million in 2017. Total Equity reached BD 51.4 million and basic
and diluted earnings per share were 29.4 fils at the close of the year.

The performance of our associate companies continues to be a vital component of the Group’s resilience
and business model. While 2019 is widely expected to be a volatile year for investments in the wake of
increased protectionism, trade-war concerns, and a late stage business cycle, we expect that our disciplined
investing philosophy, portfolio diversification and significant cash levels will act as a buffer against this.



Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

Chairman’s Message (Continued)

The Group had embarked on an upgrade of its core IT system in mid-2018 and this is expected to go live by
late 2019. We view the core system upgrade as a key first step in the eventual digitalization of our insurance
services and related operations. This will help the Group align with the government and regulator's thrust
towards adopting financial technologies in offering more innovative services as well as increasing efficiencies.

The Board continues to prioritize human capital as the most valuable resource of the company with
continuous training and skills upgradation being treated as key component to the success of the Group's
strategic plan. We are thankful to the support offered by Tamkeen and other government agencies in this
regard.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, ! would like to express my sincere appreciation and gratitude to His
Majesty King Hamad bin Isa Al Khalifa, His Royal Highness Prime Minister Prince Khalifa bin Salman Al
Khalifa, and His Royal Highness the Crown Prince, Deputy Supreme Commander and First Deputy Prime
Minister, Prince Salman bin Hamad Al Khalifa for their wise leadership and support of the Kingdom's financial
sector.

I also extend my thanks to all the ministries, institutions, and government agencies, especially the Ministry
of Industry, Commerce and Tourism, the Central Bank of Bahrain, the Ministry of Finance, Tamkeen and
the Bahrain Bourse, for their guidance and continuous support.

| would aiso like to take this opportunity to thank all our shareholders, customers and business partners

for their continuous trust and loyalty, and the members of the Board of Directors, the  Executive
Management and all employees for their efforts and dedication during 2018.

Faiooq Yusuf Almoayyed

Chairman of the Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
Bahrain National Holding Company B.S.C.

P.O. Box 843, 9th floor, BNH Tower,

Al Seef Business District, Kingdom of Bahrain

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bahrain National Holding Company B.S.C.
{the “Company”) and ils subsidiaries (together the “Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and noles, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountanis Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Technical insurance provisions
{refer to the use of estimate and management judgement in note 5(b)(i), 5(b)(ii), accounting policy in note 5(a)(ii), 5(a){iii}
and note 16 to the consolidated financial statements)

Description How the matter was addressed in our audit
We focused on this matter because: Our audit procedures, with the assistance of our actuarial
specialists, included:
= as at 31 December 2018, the Group had * testing the design and operating effectiveness
significant technical insurance provisions, of the key controls around recording and
representing 72.8% of the Group's total reserving process for reported claims,
liabilities relating to outstanding claim reserves, unreported claims and unearned premium;
life actuarial reserve, claims that have been . testi le of oulstandi tai d
incurred at reporting date but have not yet been esting a sample of outslanding claims an

related reinsurance recoveries and subrogation
claims, focusing on those with most significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements
lo assess whether claims and related recoveries

reported to the Group, and unearned premiums;

= the valuation of technical insurance provisions
involves high tevel of subjectivity, significant

judgment and assumptions, in particutar life are appropriately estimated;

acluarial reserves and claims that have been = for major lines of business, we assessed the
incurred al reporting date but have not yet been reasonableness of the key assumptions, such
reported to the Group involve significant as loss rafio, risk factor, claims adjustment
judgement over uncertain future outcomes, expenses, frequency and severity of claims,
including primarily the timing and amount of which were used in the valuation models and
ultimate full settlement of palicyholder liabilities; comparing them to the Group's historical data;
and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Description (conlinued)

intemal claim development methods and
actuarial models are used to support the
calculation of insurance technical reserves. The
complexity of the models may give rise to errors
as a result of inaccuratefincomplete data or the
design or application of the models may be
inappropriate. Assumptions used in actuarial
models, such as historical claims, which can be
used to project the trend of future claims,
mortality, morbidity, expenses, lapse rates, and
so on, are set up in applying estimates and
judgements based on the experience analysis
and future expectations by managemeni,

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

we also evaluated whether reserving was
consistent in approach, wilh sufficient
justification for changes in assumptions. We
used our industry knowledge to benchmark the
Group's reserving methodologies and estimates
of losses. Our audit focused on lines of business
with most inherent uncertainty;

we also considered the approprialeness of
information provided to external independent
actuarial experts engaged by the Group and
considered their scope of work and findings to
corroborate adequacy of management
estimates on claims reserving; and

assessing the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures related to technical insurance
provisions in the consclidated financial
statements by reference to the requirements of
the relevant accounting standards.

Valuation and Impairment of available-for-sale financial investments

(refer to the use of estimate and management judgement in note 5(b)(iii), accounting policy in note 5(a)(xii) and note 8
fo the consolidated financial statements)

Description

We focused on this matter because:

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's financial
investments comprise 33.7% of total assets in
the consolidated financial statements and is
considered one of the drivers of operations and
performance. We do not consider these
investments to be al high risk of significant
misstatement, or to be subject to a significant
risk of judgment because they mainly comprise
liquid, quoted investments. However due to
their materiality in the context of the
consolidated financial stalements as a whole,
they are considered to be one of the areas
which we focused on;

As at 31 December 2018, a significant amount,
representing 81.2% of total financial
investments, comprise “available-for-sale
securities” having carrying value of BD 25.8
million, which is subject to impairment
assessment; and

The Group makes subjective judgments over
both timing of recognition of impairment and the
estimation of the amount of such impairment.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included:

testing the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls over process of recording
investment transactions and valuation of the
quoted investment portfolio;

agreeing the valuation of the quoted equity and
debt securites and managed funds to
externally quoted prices; and

for unlisted managed funds, comparing the
carrying values with the most recent Net Assets
Values of the underlying funds.

For impairment of available-for-sale equity securities and
managed funds, we:

examined whether management has identified
all investments that have experienced a decline
in fair value below cost; and

evaluated the reasonableness and consistency
of the application of the criteria to determine
that a significant or prolonged decline in fair
value below cost has led to recognition of
impairment.

For impairment of available for sale debt securities, we:

evaluated individual debt securily for any signs
of significant financial difficulty of the issuer;
assessed if there has been a default or past due
event; and

assessed if there had been a significant drop in
fair value.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures in relation to valuation and impairment of
available for sale financial investments by reference to
the requirements of the relevant accounting standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Impairment of insurance receivables and recoveries

(refer to the use of estimate and management judgement in note 5(b)(iii), accounting policy in note 5(a){vii) and 5(a)(xii)
and notes 7 and 32(d)(i} to the consolidated financial statements)

Description How the matter was addressed in our audit
We focused on this matier because: Our audit procedures, amongst others, included:
= As at 31 December 2018, the Group had = testing the design and operating effectiveness
significant insurance receivables from policy of controls over the process of collection and
holders and other insurance companies and identification of doubtful balances;
recoverable amounts from reinsurance
companies, representing 10.9% of Group's total * focusing on those accounts with the most
assets; significant potential impact on the consolidated
financial statements, results of reconciliation of
* The Group faces a risk of non-recoverability of statement of accounts and receipts subsequent
these receivables due to financial difficulties of to the year-end; and

the counter parties;
* evaluating the adequacy of the Group's

= Estimation of the recoverable amount and disclosures related to credit risk on insurance

determining the level of impairment allowance receivables and impairment allowance in the

involves judgement and estimation uncertainty; consolidated financial statements by reference

and to the requirements of the relevant accounting
standards.

* The Group makes subjeclive judgments over
both timing of recognition of impairment and the
estimation of the amount of such impairment,

Other information

The board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the annual report but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Prior to the date of this auditors’
report, we obtained the Chairman's report which forms part of the annual report, and the remaining sections of the
annual report are expected to be made available to us after that date.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will nat
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In conneclion with our audit of the consolidated financial stalements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is malerially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we have obtained prior to the date of this
auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstalement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the board of directors for the consolidated financial statements

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as the board of directors determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the board of directors is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using the going concem
basis of accounting unless the board of directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consofidated financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TQ THE SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

® |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from emror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the board of directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the board of director's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability fo continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concem.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, struclure and content of the consolidated financial stalements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entilies or business activities
within the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial stalements for the year endad 31 December 2018 and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we delermine that a matter should not be communicated in

our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Commercial Companies Law, we report that:

a) the Company has maintained proper accounting records and the consolidated financial statements are in
agreement therewith;

b) the financial information contained in the chairman’s report is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements;

c) we are not aware of any violations during the year of the Commercial Companies Law or the terms of the
Company's memorandum and articles of association, that would have had a material adverse effect on the
business of the Company or on its financial position; and

d} satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by management in response to all our
requests.

The gngagement aar on the audit resulting in this independent audilor's report is Mahesh Balasubramanian.

(

MG Fakhro
Partner Registration No. 137
26 February 2019



Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018 {In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)
31 December 31 December
Note 2018 2017
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 11,181 3,097
Placements with banks B 3,497 9,333
Insurance and other receivables 7 10,324 9,600
Financial investments 8 31,764 29,839
Equity accounted investees 9 17,633 16,934
Reinsurers’ share of insurance technical reserves 10 12,442 9,980
Deferred acquisition cost 27 634 576
Investment properties 12 2,774 2,936
Intangible assets 13 275 211
Property and equipment 14 3,728 3,676
Statutory deposits 15 125 125
Total assets 94,377 86,307
LIABILITIES
Insurance technical reserves 16 31,328 26,428
Insurance payables 20 4,599 3,973
Other provisions and liabilities 21 7,096 5,586
Total liabilities 43,023 35,987
Net assets 51,354 50,320
EQUITY
Share capital 23b 11,918 11,350
Treasury shares 23c (1,868) (1,868)
Share premium 23¢9 3,980 3,990
Statutory reserve 242 5,959 5,675
General reserve 24b 13,585 13,585
Fair value reserve 24 ¢c 2,698 3,355
Retained earnings 12,568 11,754
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent
company 48,850 47,841
Non-controlling interest 11 2,504 2,479
Total equity 51,354 50,320

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2019
and signed on its behalf by:

Farooq Yusuf Almoayyed Abdulhussain Khalil Dawani Sameer AlWazzan
Chairman Vice Chairman Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

{In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

Gross insurance premiums
Reinsurers' share of gross insurance premiums
Retained premiums

Net change in reserve for unearned premiums

Net premiums earned

Gross claims paid

Claims recoveries

Outstanding claims adjustment - gross
Outstanding claims adjustment - reinsurance

Net claims incurred

Gross underwriting profit

Actuarial adjustment on life assurance obligation
Net commission and fee income

General and administration expenses - underwriting
Other income

Net underwriting profit / {loss)

Net investment income
Impairment losses on investment

Share of profit of equity accounted investees
Gains on partial sale of investment in equity accounted
investees

Net income from road assist services
General and administration expenses - non-underwriting

Other income

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to:

Parent company
Non-controlling interest

Basic and diluted earnings per share

C el see”

Farooq\fusuf Almoayyed
Chairman

Vice Chairman

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2018 2017
Note

26 33,581 28,887
(16,267) (12,702)

17,314 16,185
18 (613) (365)
16,701 15,820
(21,394) (22,478)

10,768 11,974
17d (2,141) (1,748)
17d 784 (36)
(11,983) (12,288)

4,718 3,532

19 19 (35)
27 60 102
30a (4,108) (4,031)
33 -

724 (432)

28 2,319 1,889
29 (50) (308)
9 2,098 2,676

- 114

125 97

30b (1,729) (1,783)
5 =

3,492 2,253

3,279 2,095

11 213 158
3,492 2,253

23d,e | 204fils | [ 18sfis |

Abdulhussain Khalil Dawani

Sameer AlWazzan
Chief Executive Officer



Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2018

{In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

Note

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss:

Available-for-sale securities:

- Change in fair value

- Transfer to statement of profit or loss on impairment of securities

- Transfer to statement of profit or loss on disposal of securities 28

Share of other comprehensive income of equity accounted
investees

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Parent company
Non-controlling interest 11

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2018 2017

3,492 2,253
47 1,028
21 308
(805) (322)
(6) 170
(743) 1,184
2,749 3,437
2,622 3,187
127 250
2,749 3,437
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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)
Note 2018 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Insurance operations

Premiums and service fees received, net of acquisition costs 33,808 29,278
Payments to insurance and reinsurance companies (15,771) {12,155)
Claims paid to policyholders (20,918) {22,999)
Claims recovered from reinsurers and salvage recoveries 11,368 11,592
Cash flows from insurance operations 8,487 5,718

Investment operations

Dividends and interest received 1,724 1,240

Proceeds from sale and redemptions of financial investments 14,813 6,928

Payments for purchases of financial investments (16,909) (8,789)
Bank deposits with maturities of mare than three months {3,497) (9,458)
Redemption proceeds from bank deposits 9,333 9,121

Proceeds from partial sale of investment in equity accounted

investees - 343

Dividends received from equity accounted investees 1,162 1,353

Payment for investment properties (2) (5)
Rent received 341 289

Cash flows from investment operations 6,955 1,022

Expenses paid (5,286) (5.781)
Cash flows from operating activities 10,156 957

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets {531} | {664)
Cash flows used in investment activities {531) {664)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid to shareholders (1.411) (2,207)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest (102) -
Donations paid (28) (37)
Cash flows used in financing activities {1,541) (2,244)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,084 (1,951)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 3,097 5,048
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 6 11,181 3,097

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 {In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

1

2

REPORTING ENTITY

Bahrain National Holding B.S.C (the “Company”) is domiciled in Kingdom of Bahrain. The Company's
registered office at 9th floor, BNH Tower, Seef Business District, Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain, P.O.
Box 843.

These consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group"). The Group is primarily involved in
insurance and investment aclivities.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND MEASURMENT

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS} and in conformity with Commercial Companies Law. The consolidated

financial statements comply with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
{IASB).

The consolidated financial statements have been drawn up from the accounting records of the Company
and its subsidiaries under the historical cost convention, except for investment securities carried at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale securities, which are stated at fair value,

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the board of directors on
26 February 2018.

a) Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Bahraini Dinar, which is the Group's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
stated.

b} Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5 (b).

c) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2018

The following standards, amendments and interpretations, which became effective as of
1 January 2018, are relevant to the Group:

i} IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 sels out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities
and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, however, certain
exemptions have been provided for certain qualifying insurers to delay the application of IFRS
9 to the date of adoption of IFRS 17. The summarized impact of IFRS 9 application over
insurance and non-insurance is as follows:
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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 {In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)
2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND MEASURMENT (continued)

a} [IFRS 9 impact on insurance activities:
The Group has performed an assessment of the exemption requirements and determined
that its activities are predominantly connected with insurance, and hence it has opted to
apply the temporary exemption available under IFRS 4 and will therefore apply this standard
for the periods beginning 1 January 2021.

b) IFRS 9 impact on non-insurance equity accounted investees:
The Group has certain non-insurance equity accounted investees which do not qualify for
delay in the application of IFRS 9 and have adopted IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. Although
the Group opted to apply the temporary exemption available under IFRS 4 as determined
above, it has retained the application of IFRS 9 on its non-insurance equity accounted
investees as per IFRS 4.

The effect of initially applying this standards is mainly attributed to an increase in impairment
losses recognised on financial assets.

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at
amortised cost, FVOCI and FVTPL. The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is
generally based on the business madel in which a financial asset is managed and on its
contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of
held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the standard are
never separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is assessed for
classification.

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities.

The Group recognized the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 9 as an adjustment to
the opening retained earnings balance at 1 January 2018. Refer to note 4 for detailed
impact.

ii) Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments to
IFRS 4)
In September 2016, the IASB published an amendment to IFRS 4 which addresses the concerns
of insurance companies about the different effective dates of IFRS 9 Financial instruments and
the new insurance contracts standard. The amendment provides two different solutions for
insurance companies: a temporary exemption from IFRS 9 for entities that meet specific
requirements (applied at the reporting entity level), and the ‘overlay approach’. Both approaches
are optional.

IFRS 4 (including the amendments) will be superseded by the forthcoming new insurance
contracts standard. Accordingly, both the temporary exemption and the ‘overlay approach’ are
expected to cease to be applicable when the new insurance standards becomes effective.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

The Group has selected to apply the temporary exemption from IFRS option which does not
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Bahbrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 {In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND MEASURMENT (continued)

ili)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the
goods or services. Determining the timing of the transfer of control — at a point in time or over
time - requires judgement.

IFRS 15 has been applied over Group's non-insurance revenue and that lead to deferring the
recognition of service revenues of its car repair and assistance activities over the period.

The Group recognized the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to
the opening retained earnings balance at 1 January 2018, without restating prior period.
Accordingly, the information for 2017 has not been restated - i.e. it is presented, as previously
reported. Refer to note 4 for detailed impact.

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)

A transfer is made when and only when there is an actual change in use - i.e. an asset meets
or ceases to meet the definition of investment property if there is evidence of the change in use.
A change in management intention alone does not support a transfer.

The revised examples of evidence of a change in use included in the amended version of I1AS
40 are not exhaustive - i.e. other forms of evidence may support a transfer.

A company has a choice on transition to apply the prospective approach - i.e. apply the
amendments to transfers that occur after the date of initial application — and also reassess the
classification of property assets held at that date.

The adoption of this standard had no significantimpact on the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle — various standards

The annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycles include certain amendments to various
IFRSs. Earlier application is permitted (along with the special transitional requirement in each
case), in which case the related consequential amendments to other IFRSs would also apply.

The following are the key amendments in brief:

« IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities — The disclosure requirements for
interests in other entities also apply to interests that are classified as held for sale or
distribution. Effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

* |AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — A venture capital organisation,
or other qualifying entity, may elect to measure its investments in an associate or joint
venture at fair value through profit or loss. This election can be made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

A non-investment entity investor may elect to retain the fair value accounting applied by an
investment enlity associate or investment entity joint venture to its subsidiaries. This election
can be made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture. Effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018; early application is
permitted.

The adoption of these amendmentis had no significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 {In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND MEASURMENT (continued)

vi) IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

When foreign currency consideration is paid or received in advance of the item it relates to —
which may be an asset, an expense or income — IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates is not clear on how to determine the transaction date for translating the related
item.

This has resulted in diversity in practice regarding the exchange rate used to translate the
related item.

IFRIC 22 clarifies that the transaction date is the date on which the company initially recognises
the prepayment or deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For transactions
involving multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt gives rise to a separate
transaction date.

The amendments are effective for annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018,

The adoption of this amendment had no significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

d) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2018 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Group has not early applied
the following new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

The following standards are expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements
in the period of initial application.

i)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance lease sheet accounting model for lessees. A lessee
recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are optional exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the
current standard- i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption
is permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers at or before
the date of initial application of IFRS 16.

The Group will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases. The nature of
expenses related to those leases will now change because the Group will recognise a
depreciation charge for right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.

Previously, the Group recognised operating lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease, and recognised assets and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing
difference between actual lease payments and the expense recognised.

In addition, the Group will no longer recognise provisions for operating leases that it assesses

to be onerous. Instead, the Group will include the payments due under the lease in ils lease
liability.
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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND MEASURMENT (continued)

if)

i)

iv)

Transition

The Group plans to apply IFRS 16 initially on 1 January 2019, using the modified retrospective
approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained eamings at 1 January 2019, with no restatement
of comparative information.

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9)
The IASB has changed IFRS 9's requirements in two areas of financial instruments accounting.
These changes could significantly affect companies preparing financial statements for 2017.

Financial assets containing prepayment features with negative compensation can now be
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if
they meet the other relevant requirements of IFRS 9. Companies that have modified or
exchanged fixed rale financial liabilities face a significant change in the accounting for non-
substantial modifications that do not result in deracognition.

The amendment applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption
is permitted.

The Group does not expect to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Long term interests in associates and joint venture (Amendments to IAS 28)

An amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures will affect companies
that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not
expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI"). The amendment,
which addresses equity-accounted loss absorption by LTI, involves the dual application of IAS
28 and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and
IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied.

In effect, this is a three-step annual process:

Apply IFRS 9 independently
*  True up past allocations
= Book current year equity share

The amendment applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption
is permitted.

The Group does not expect to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19)
The amendment clarifies how the asset ceiling cost is incorporated into the gain or loss
calculation.

The amendments also clarify that:

®* on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses
updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the
period; and
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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 {In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND MEASURMENT (continued)

vi)

vii)

* the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any
settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income (OCI).

Consistent with the calculation of a gain or loss on a plan amendment, a company now uses
updated actuarial assumplions to determine the current service cost and net interest for the
period. Previously, it would not have updated its calculation of these costs until the year-end.

Further, if a defined benefit plan was settled, any asset ceiling would be disregarded when
determining the plan assets as part of the calculation of gain or loss on settlement.

The amendment applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early adoption
is permitted.

The Group does not expect to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - various standards
As part of its process to make non-urgent but necessary amendments to IFRS, the IASB has
issued the Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
with earlier application permitted.

The following are the key amendments in brief:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
Clarify how a company accounts for increasing its interest in a joint operation that meets the
definition of a business.

* If a party maintains (or obtains) joint control, then the previously held interest is not
remeasured.

* If a party obtains control, then the transaction is a business combination achieved in stages
and the acquiring party remeasures the previousty held interest at fair value.

IFRS 11 - joint arrangement
Clarified that the party obfaining joint control of a business that is a joint operation should not
remeasure its previously held interest in the joint operation.

The Group does not expect to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
The main changes to the Framework’s principles have implications for how and when assets
and liabilities are recognised and derecognised in the financial statements.

Some of the concepts in the revised Framework are entirely new — such as the ‘practical ability’
approach to liabilities. As they have not been tested as part of any recent standard-setting
process, it is unclear what challenges the Board will encounter when using them to develop
standards in the future. It is also unclear what challenges preparers of financial statements will
face after those future standards become effective.

The amendment applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
{Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

The IASB has made limited scope amendments to IFRS 10 Censolidated financial statements
and IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures.
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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 {In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND MEASURMENT (continued)

viii)

The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associates or joint ventures. They confirm that the accounting treatment
depends on whether the non-monetary assets sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture
constitute a ‘business’ (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations).

Where the non-monetary assets constitute a business, the investor will recognise the full gain
or loss on the sale or contribution of assets. If the assets do not meet the definition of a business,
the gain or loss is recognised by the investor only to the extent of the other investor's investors
in the associate or joint venture. The amendments apply prospectively.

The effective date for these changes has now been postponed until the completion of a broader
review — which the IASB hopes will resultin the simplification of accounting for such transactions
and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, early adoption
continues to be permitted.

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 as replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. it requires a
current measurement model where estimates are re-measured each reporting period. Contracts
are measured using the building blocks of:

discounted probability-weighted cash flows
an explicit risk adjustment, and

a contractual service margin (“CSM”) representing the unearned profit of the contract which
is recognised as revenue over the coverage period.

The standard allows a choice between recognising changes in discount rates either in the
income statement or directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect how
insurers accaunt for their financial assets under IFRS 9.

An optional, simplified premium allocation approach is permitted for the liability for the remaining
coverage for short duration contracts, which are often written by non-life insurers.

There is a madification of the general measurement model called the ‘variable fee approach’ for
certain contracts written by life insurers where policyholders share in the returns from underlying
items. When applying the variable fee approach the entity's share of the fair value changes of
the underlying items is included in the contractual service margin. The results of insurers using
this mode! are therefore likely to be less volatile than under the general mode!.

The new rules will affect the financial statements and key performance indicators of all entities
that issue insurance contracts or investment contracts with discretionary participation features.

The amendment applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The Group is in progress to commence the impact assessment of IFRS 17.

3 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

a) Business combinations
The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is

transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at

fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually
for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognized in profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity

securities.
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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (in thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

3 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

b)

d)

e)

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation
to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of financial instrument is classified as
equity, then it is not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other
contingent consideration is re-measured at fair value at each reporting date and subsequent
changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group ‘controls’ an entity if it is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable retums from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those relurns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until
the date when control ceases.

Non-controlling interest (NCI)

Non-controlling interest represents their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net
assels at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as an equity transaction.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former
subsidiary is measured at measured at fair value when control is lost.

Interest in equity-accounted investees

The Group's interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates and a joint
venture.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over the financial and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the
Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather
than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.

Interests in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are
initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence
or joint control ceases.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted
investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee.
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Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (in thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

4 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. A number of other new standards
are also effective from 1 January 2018, but they do not have a material effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 9 has been applied over Group's non-insurance equity accounted investees which do not qualify
for delay in the application of IFRS 9 and have adopted IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. Although the
Group opted to apply the temporary exemption available under IFRS 4 as determined above, it has
retained the application of IFRS 9 on its non-insurance equity accounted investees as per IFRS 4.

IFRS 15 has been applied over Group's non-insurance revenue and that lead to deferring the recognition
of service revenues of its car repair and assistance activities over the period.

Due to the transition methods chosen by the Group in applying these standards, comparative information
throughout these consolidated financial statements has not been restated to reflect the requirements of
the new standards.

The impact of applying IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 is summarized as follows:

Retained

earnings
Balance at 1 January 2018, as previously reported 11,754
Impact of IFRS 9 adoption by non-insurance equity accounted investee (241)
Impact of IFRS 15 adoption by non-insurance subsidiaries (75) |
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 11,438

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

a) Significant Accounting Policies

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in
these consaclidated financial statements:

i) Insurance and investment contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. The Group
classifies all its contracts individually as either insurance contracts or investment contracts.
Contracts which contain both insurance components and investment components, and where
the investment component can be measured independently from the insurance component,
are “unbundled” i.e. separately classified and accounted for as insurance contracts and
investment contracts.

Insurance contracls are those contracts where the insurer accepts significant insurance risk
from the policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future
event adversely affects the policyholder. Such contracts may also transfer financial risk. As a
general guideline, the Group defines significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to
pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event.

Investment contracts have been accounted for and recognized in accordance with IAS 39 —
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and Insurance Contracts has been
accounted for and recognized in accordance with IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts.



Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 {In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)
5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

ii) General insurance business

Gross insurance premiums

Gross insurance premiums in respect of annual policies are credited at policy inception. In
respect of policies with a term of more than one year, the premiums are spread over the tenure
of the policies on a straight-line basis, the unexpired portion of such premiums being included
under "insurance technical reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance premiums
Reinsurance ceded, in respect of proportional reinsurance transactions, is matched with the
premiums received. Non-proportional reinsurance cost is accounted for when incurred.

Unearned premiums
Unearned premiums are estimated amounts of premiums under insurance contracts which are
to be earned in the following or subsequent financial periods, for the unexpired period of
insurance as at the reporting date. Unearned premiums have been calculated on gross
premiums as follows:

* by the 24th method for all annual insurance contracts, except for marine cargo business,
and

* by the 6th method for marine cargo business, in order to spread the contributions earned
over the tenure of the insurance contracts.

Gross claims paid
Claims paid in the year are charged to the profit or loss net of salvage and other recoveries. At

the reporting date, provision is made for all outstanding claims including claims incurred but
not reported (IBNR).

Claims recoveries
Claim recoveries include amounts recovered from reinsurers in respect of the gross claims paid
by the Group, in accordance with the reinsurance contracts held by the Group.

Outstanding claims

For general insurance contracts, estimates have to be made for both the expected ultimate
cost of claims reported at the reporting date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims IBNR
at the reporting date.

Provision for outstanding claims are based on estimates of the loss, which will aventually be
payable on each unpaid claim, established by management in the light of current available
information and past experience and modified for changes reflected in current conditions,
increased exposure, rising claims costs and the severity and frequency of recent claims, as
appropriate.

The IBNR provision is based on statistical information related to actual past experience of
claims incurred but not reported. The IBNR provision also includes a further amount, subject
to annual review by management, to meet certain contingencies such as:

= unexpected and unfavorable court judgments which may require a higher payout than
ariginally estimated; and

= settlement of claims, which may take longer than expected, resulting in actual payouts being
higher than estimated.

General insurance provisions are not discounted for time value of money, due to the expected
short duration to settlement.

23



Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 {In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

iif)

Commission income

Commission income represents commissions received from reinsurers under the terms of
ceding. Commission income is matched with premiums earned resulting in an element of
unearned commission being carried forward at the reporting date.

Deferred commission and acquisition costs

Commission expense and other acquisition costs incurred during the financial period that vary
with and are related to securing new insurance contracts and/or renewing existing insurance
contracts, but which relate to subsequent financial periods are deferred to the extent that they
are recoverable out of the future revenue margins. Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) are
capitalized and amortized on a straight line basis over the life of the contract. All other
acquisition costs are recognized as an expense when incurred.

Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell {usually damaged) property acquired in
settling a claim (salvage). The Group may also have the right to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs (subrogation). Salvage recoveries are recognized on receipt and
subrogation claims are recognized when right to receive is established.

General and administration expenses
General and administration expenses include direct operating expenses. All expenses are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Life assurance business
The life assurance operations underwrites two categories of policies:

* Term life assurance including group term assurance which are of short duration, normally
for periods of 12 months; and

= Participating (with profits) policies whereby the assured is entitled to a share of the profits
from a poo! of investments, such share being distributed at the discretion of Bahrain National
Life Assurance Company after taking into account annual actuarial assessment and returns
of contract.

Gross insurance premiums

Gross insurance premiums from life assurance business are recognized when due, except for
single premiums received on certain long-term policies; such single premiums are spread over
the tenures of the palicies on a straight-line basis. Single premiums are those relating to policies
issued by the Group where there is a contractual obligation for the payment of only one
premium.

Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance premiums
Reinsurance, in respect of proportional reinsurance transactions, is matched with the premiums
received. Non-proportional reinsurance cost is accounted for when incurred.

Life assurance acluarial reserve

The life assurance actuarial reserve represents the present value of the future benefit
obligations in respect of policies in force at the reporting date. The life assurance actuarial
reserve is credited with the net investment income arising out of the investiments made by the
Group on behalf of the life assurance policyholders. At the reporting date, the net value of the
life assurance actuarial reserve is adjusted to a minimum of the actuarially estimated current
value of future benefit obligations under the Group's policies in force at the reporting date. The
shortfall, if any, is charged to the statement of profit or loss,
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iv)

Surpluses, if any, are released to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The surplus
represents amounts arising out of participating contracts, the allocation of which has not been
determined at the reporting date and future allocations of which are at the discretion of the
Bahrain National Life Assurance Company.

Gross claims paid

Claims arising on maturity are recognized when the claim becomes due for payment under the
policy terms. Death claims and surrenders under participating contracts are accounted for on
the date of natification. Annuity payments are recorded when due.

Clairns recoveries
Claim recoveries include amounts recovered from reinsurers in respect of the gross claims paid
by the Group, in accordance with the reinsurance contracts held by the Group.

Qutstanding claims

Provision for outstanding claims is based on estimates of the loss, which will eventually be
payable on each unpaid claim, established by the management in the light of currently available
information and past experience and modified for changes reflected in current conditions,
increased exposure, rising claims costs and the severily and frequency of recent claims, as
appropriate. Outstanding claim provisions are not discounted for time value of money.

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs include commission, brokerage and other variable insurance cosis directly
associated when acquiring business. These costs are amortised over the period of the
insurance contract. Acquisition costs that relate to periods of risk that extend beyond the end
of financial year are reported as deferred acquisition costs.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income from insurance and investment contract policyholders are
charged for policy administration and investment management services. The fee is recognized
as revenue in the period in which it is received unless it relates to services to be provided in
future periods where these are deferred and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as the service is provided over the term of the contract.

Bonuses
Bonuses to policyholders on profit-linked insurance contracts are recognised when declared
by the Bahrain National Life Assurance Cormnpany.

Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed by independent Actuary to ensure
the adequacy of the insurance liabilities, net of related deferred acquisition costs using current
estimates of future cash flows under insurance contracts. In performing these tests, current
best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration
expenses are used.,

Any deficiency is immediately charged to the statement of profit or loss by establishing a
provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests.
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v)

vi)

Reinsurance contracts

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for
losses on one or more contracts issued by the Group and that meet the classification
requirements for insurance contracts in note 5 are classified as reinsurance contracts held.
Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements are classified as financial assets.

Insurance contracts entered into by the Group under which the contract holder is another
insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts. The benefits to which the
Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognized as reinsurance assets.

These assets consists of balances due from reinsurers on settlement of claims and other
receivables such as profit commissions and reinsurers share of outstanding claims that are
dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are recognized consistently with the
amounts associated with the underlying insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms
of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for
reinsurance contracts and are recognized as an expense when due.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a quarterly basis. If there is an
objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognizes that impairment loss
in the statement of profit or loss. An objective evidence for impairment is assessed as a result
of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Group may
not be able to receive all the amounts due under the terms of the contract and that the event
has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Group wiil receive from the reinsurer.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

Classification

Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are held for
trading.

Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale investments are financial assets that are not invesiments carried at fair value
through profit or loss or held-to-maturity or loans and receivables. These include investments
in quoted and unquoted equity securities.

" Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and advances are stated at amortised cost,
adjusted for changes in fair value under any effective hedging arrangement, less provision for
impairment.

Recognition and de-recognition

Investment securities are initially recognised at fair value, plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Investments carried at fair value through
profit or loss is initially recognised at fair value, and transaction cost are expensed in the profit
or loss. Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all risk and rewards of
ownership.
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Measurement

Investment securities are measured initially at fair value, which is the value of the consideration
given, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investments at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale investments are re-measured to fair value. Held-
to-maturity investments and loans and advances are measured at amortised cost less any
impairment allowances. Available-for-sale investments which do not have a quoted market
price or other appropriate methods from which to derive reliable fair values, are stated at cost
less impairment allowances.

Gains and losses on subsequent measurement

Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair value of investments carried at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair value of available-for-
sale investments are recognised in a separate fair value reserve in other comprehensive
income and when the investments are sold, impaired, collected or otherwise disposed of, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the fair value reserve is transferred to the
income statement. Gains or losses arising from re-measurement, at amortised cost, of held-to-
maturity securities at each reporting date are transferred to investment income.

Fair value basis

In respect of quoted equities and bonds, the fair value is the closing market price of the security
at the reporting date. In the absence of active markets or other appropriate methods from which
to derive reliable fair values, the unquoted securities are stated at cost, less impairment
allowance. In respect of private equity funds, the fair value is provided by the fund manager.
The fair value of closed-ended managed funds, which are traded on securities exchanges, is
the closing market price of the fund at the reporting date.

Gains or losses on disposal of investments

Gains or losses on disposal of investments are included under investment income. in the event
of disposal, collection or impairment of available-for-sale securities, the cumulative gains and
losses recognised in other comprehensive income are transferred to the consolidated
statement of profit or [oss.

vii) Receivables

Receivables are initially measured at invoiced amount, being the fair value of the policyholder,
insurance companies and reinsurance companies receivables and subsequently carried at
amortised cost less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables is
established when there is an objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
defauit or delinquency in paymenis are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired.

viii) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in
hand, bank balances and short-term highly liquid assets (placements with financial institutions)
with maturities of three months or less, when acquired.

ix) Intangible assets

Software acquired by the Group is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
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X)

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

Amortisation is calculated to write off cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using straight line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised
in profit or loss. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative periods
is five years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct
tabour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits
embodied in the item of property and equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as an expense when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off cost of equipment less their estimated residual values
using straight line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in profit
or loss.

The useful lives of different categories of property and equipment are as follows:

Categories Useful live in years
Building 25 years
Machinery 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and telephons systems 5 years
Computer and office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Office improvements 3 years

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss. When an item of property and equipment is sold,
transferred or otherwise permanently withdrawn from use, the cost and accumulated
depreciation relating thereto are eliminated from the consolidated statement of financial
position, the resulting gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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xi)

Xii)

Investment properties

Investment properties, which are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, are measured
at cost, including transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment, if any. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing
investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and
excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an investment property.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed off or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of investment properties (calculated
as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item)
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that an
assel is impaired. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or
delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the
Group would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy,
the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a
group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the
company, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the company.

Financial assels carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (receivables and held-to-maturity bonds),
impairment is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial assets
and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the assets’ original effective profit
rate. Losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account.

When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss 1o decrease, the impairment
loss is reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of available-for-sale investmenis

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired. A significant or prolonged decline in the market value of the security
below its cost is considered in determining whether the assels are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on AFS equity instruments are subsequently
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income. Reversals of impairment losses on
debt instruments classified as available-for-sale are reversed through consolidated statement
of profit or loss if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment losses were recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investments carried at cost, the Group makes an assessment of whether
there is an objective evidence of impairment for each investment by assessment of financial
and other operating and economic indicators. Impairment is recognised if the estimated
recoverable amount is assessed to be below the cost of the investment,
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Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s non-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated or impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets of cash generating units (CGU's). The
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use or
fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash
generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the CGU on a pro rata basis. An impairment (oss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For
other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

xiii) Employees’ benefits

Bahraini employees

Pensions and other social benefits for Bahraini employees are covered by the Social Insurance
Organisation, which is a “defined contribution scheme” in nature under IAS 19 ‘Employee
Benefits’, and to which employees and employers contribute monthly on a fixed-percentage-
of-salaries basis.

Expatriate employees

Expatriate employees on fixed contracts are entitled to leaving indemnities payable under the
Bahraini Labour Law for the Private Sector of 2012 (as amended), based on length of service
and final remuneration. Provision for this unfunded commitment, , which is a “defined benefit
scheme” in nature under IAS 19, has been made by calculating the notional liability had all
employees left at the reporting date.

Employee savings scheme
The Group has a voluntary employees saving scheme. The Group and the employee contribute
monthly on a fixed percentage of salaries basis to the scheme.

xiv) Share Capital
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs direcily attributable to the issue of the
ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity.

xv) Dividends
Dividends to shareholders are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

xvi) Directors' remunerations

Directors’ remunerations are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year in which they
are incurred.
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xvii)

xviii)

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business
segmenis.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business aclivities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating segments’ operating
results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors and Group's Investment and Executive
Committee to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Board of Directors and Executive Committee include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the seitlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are included in fair value reserve.

Other group companies
The other group companies functional currencies are denominated in Bahraini Dinar, and
hence, there is no translation of financial statements of the Group companies.

b) Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities. Estimates and judgments are reviewed on ongoing basis evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively.

i} The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is
the Group’s most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that
need to be considered in the estimate of the liability that the Group will ultimately pay for such
claims.

The ultimate cost of setting claims is estimated using a range of loss reserving methods. These
techniques assume that the Group's own claims experience is indicative of future ciaims
development pattems and therefore ultimate claims cost. The assumptions used, including
loss ratios and future claims infiation are implicitly derived from the historical claims
development data on which the projections are based, although judgment is applied to assess
the extent to which past trends might not apply in the future trends are expected to emerge.
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i)

iii)

Also, the estimation for claims IBNR using statistical models include an estimation made to
meet certain contingencies such as unexpected and unfavorable court judgments which may
require a higher payout than originally estimated and settlement of claims, which may take
longer than expected, resulting in actual payouts being higher than estimated.

Life assurance actuarial reserve estimation
Life insurance liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are
charged.

For long-term life insurance contracts, liabilities are currently measured by using the ‘Net
Premium’ valuation method. The Kability is determined as the discounted value of the expected
future benefits, policyholder options and guarantees, less the discounted value of the expected
net premiums that would be required to meet the future cash outflows based on the valuation
assumptions used.

The fiability for life insurance contracts, mainly yearly renewable and group life contracts,
comprises the provision for uneamed premiums calculated on the basis of 1/365 reserving
method, as well as for claims outstanding, which may include an estimate of the incurred claims
that have not yet been reported to the Group. Adjustments to the liabilities at each reporting
date are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Profits originated from margins
of adverse deviations on run-off contracts are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the life of the confract, whereas losses are fully recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the first year of run-off. The liability is recognised when the
contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled. The assumptions are reviewed on yearly basis
and include assumptions for incidence rates like mortality and morbidity, expenses and
discount rates.

Incidence assumplions are based on standard industry mortality rate tables adjusted in order
to reflect the historical experience of the country and company in particular. These tables
estimates the number of deaths in order to determine the value of the benefit payments and
the value of the valuation premiums.

The interest rate applied when discounting cash flows is based on prudent expectation of
current market returns, expectations about future economic and financial developments as well
as the analysis of investment income arising from the assets backing long term insurance
contracts. For the long term plans an assumption of 4.5% is currently used.

Impairment losses for available-for-sale securities and receivables

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities and managed funds are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their
cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgement. In the case of
quoted equity securities in active markets, the Group considers a decline in value below cost
of 30%, or if the average cost of the investment is higher than the 52-week high traded price
as on the date of assessment. In the case where markets for the investment are assessed to
be inactive, the Group determines impairment based on its assessment of the investee
companies’ financial health, indusiry and sector performance.

Where fair values are not available, the recoverable amount of such investment is estimated
to test for impairment. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates among other factors, the
normal volatility in share price, evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational and financing cash
flows.
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Impairment losses on held-to-maturity securities carried at amortised cost are measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial assets and the present value of
estimated cash flows discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate. Losses are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and reflected in an allowance against
the investment.

When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the impairment
loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Impairment losses on receivables are established when there is an objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that
the trade receivable is impaired. Losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and reflected in an allowance against the receivables.

When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the impairment
loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

iv) Classification of investments
In the process of applying the Group's accounting poficies, management decides on acquisition
of an investment whether it should be classified as investments designated at fair value through
profit or loss, held-to-maturity or available-for-sale investment securities. The classification of
each investment reflects the management’s intention in relation to each investment and is
subject to different accounting treatments based on such classification.

v) Classification of Arabian Shield Cooperative Insurance Company (ASCIC) as an
associate
The Group classified the Arabian Shield Cooperative Insurance Company as an associate of
the Group although the Group only owns a 15% ownership interest in ASCIC. An associate is
an entity over which the investor has significant influence. The Group exercises significant
influence over ASCIC, as it has a representation on the board of directors and participates in
policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or other
distributions and in advise on technical matters via representation on the Executive and
Investment Committee of ASCIC. The Group's extent of ownership is also significant relative
to other shareholders,

6 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2018 2017
Cash and bank current accounts 4,089 3,097
Placements with banks, with maturities of three months or less
when acquired 6,102 -
Treasury bills, with maturities of three months or less when
acquired 930 -
Cash and cash equivalents 11,181 3,097
Placements with banks with maturities of more than three
months 3,497 9,333
Total cash and balances with banks 14,678 12,430

Information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and credit risks are included in note 32.
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7

INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Insurance receivables

Policyholders

Provision for impairment of receivables from policyholders
Write off of receivables from policyholder

Insurance and reinsurance companies

Provision for impairment of receivables from insurance and
reinsurance companies

Other receivables

Accrued income

Recoverable deposits

Rent receivables

Provision for impairment of rent receivables
Prepayments and advances

Others

Movement in provision for impairment during the year is as follow:

Opening balance

Charges during the year

Write off

Balances recovered during the year

2018 2017
5,051 3,454
(691) (484)
(3) -
5,152 5,655
(750) (655)
8,759 7,970
865 838
343 443
115 33
{72) (2)
149 172
165 146
1,565 1,630
10,324 9,600
2018 2017

1,141 780

377 361
(3) S

(2) 2

1,513 1,141

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for receivables

is included in note 32,

8 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Securities carried at fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities

2018 2017
1,966 1,606

25,809 23,933
3,989 4,300

31,764 29,839
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8 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)

a) Securities carried at fair value through profit or loss

Listed securities:

- Equity securities

- Government debt securities
- Corporate debt securities

- Treasury bills

- Managed funds

Unlisted funds

Movement during the year:

Opening balance
Purchases

Sales

Fair value movement

2018 2017
369 402
179 392
492 180
196 -
634 556

96 76
1,966 1,606
1,606 1,499
1,172 200
(753) (180)

(59) 87
1,966 1,606

information about the Group’s exposure to credit and market risk, and fair value measurement, is

included in notes 32, 33, 34, and 36.

b) Available-for-sale securities

Listed securities:

- Equity securities

- Government debt securities
- Corporate debt securities

- Treasury bills

- Managed funds

Unlisted securities and funds

Movement during the year:
Opening balance

Purchases

Disposals

Fair value movement

Impairment losses

35

2018 2017
8,395 8,349
1,897 1,864
6,504 5,670
1,468 -
4,717 5474
2,828 2,576

25,809 23,933

23,933 20,080
15,729 8,569

(13,115) (5,600)
(688) 1,192

25,859 24,241

(50) (308)

25,809 23,933
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8 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)

Investments in unlisted securities and funds include investments of BD 177 thousand
(2017: BD 176 thousand) carried at cost less impairment in the absence of a reliable measure of fair

value.

Information about the Group's exposure to credit and market risk, and fair value measurement, is
included in notes 32, 33, 34, and 36.

c) Held-to-maturity securities

Government debt securities
Corporate debt securities

Movement during the year:

Opening balance
Matured securities
Exchange losses

2018 2017 2018 2017
Fair value Fair value Carrying value| Carrying value

3,062 3,468 3,021 3,368

974 984 968 932

4,036 4,452 3,989 4,300
4,300 4,800

(305) (489)
(6) (11}

3,989 4,300

Information about the Group's exposure to credit and market risk is included in notes 32, 33 and 34.

d} Policyholders’ investments

The Group identified specific investments as policyholders' investments. These investments represent
the funding of the life assurance actuarial reserve. The Group has adopted this step as a measure of
protection for policyholders. Surpluses, if any, of these investments over the life assurance actuarial
reserve may be dealt with at the discretion of the Group. The carrying value of the policyholders’

financial assets (including financial assets of the staff retirement scheme) at the reporting date,
included under financial assets are as follows:

Cash equivalents
Placements with banks
Financial investments

Life assurance actuarial reserve (note 19)

36

2018 2017
36 36
427 614
2,662 2,453
3,125 3,103
3,166 3,038
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9 EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

a) Interests in associates

Details of each of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Percentage of

Location
ne
Name of the entity 9f o::te::ztip Pl Principal activities
business relationship
f country 2018 2017
National Finance Kingdom Engaged in consumer
House BSC (c) of Bahrain | 34.93% | 34.93% | Associate | and auto finance
business
Al Kindi Specialised Kingdom Engaged in providing
Hospital W.L.L. of Bahrain 27% 27% Associate | private medical
services
United Insurance Kingdom Primarily provides
Company BSC (c) of Bahrain 20% 20% Associate | insurance coverage
for motor vehicles
Arabian Shield Kingdom Transact various
Cooperative of Saudi 15% 15% Associate | types of general
Insurance Company Arabia insurance business

b) The movements in the investment in associates and joint venture are as follows:

Arabian
National Al Kindi United Shield
2018 Finance |Specialised| Insurance |Cooperative Total
House Hospital | Company | Insurance
Company *
Opening balance 5,077 1,611 2,859 7,387 16,934
Share of profit 444 157 718 779 2,098
Dividends received (210) (42) (900) - {1,152)
Share of other comprehensive
income - - (8) 2 {(6)
Adjustment on initial application
of IFRS 9 {241) - - - (241)
5,070 1,726 2,669 8,168 17,633
Arabian
National Al Kindi United Shield
2017 Finance |Specialised| Insurance | Cooperative Total
House Hospital Company Insurance
Company *
Opening balance 4,826 1,465 2,668 6,711 15,670
Share of profit 461 113 625 1,477 2,676
Dividends received (210) (42) {500) (602) {1,354)
Partial sale - - - {228) (228)
Share of other comprehensive
income - 75 656 29 170
5,077 1,611 2,859 7,387 16,934
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9 EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES (continued)

* The market value of Group’s investments in Arabian Shield Cooperative Insurance Company based
on the price quoted in Saudi Stock Exchange as at 31 December 2018 was BD 8,321 thousand
(31 December 2017: BD 8,436 thousand).

c) Latest available financial information of the material associates of the Group are as follows:

Arabian
National United Shield

2018 Finance Insurance | Cooperative
House Company Insurance
Company
Total assets 56,075 25,601 116,313
Total liabilities 41,561 12,257 74,059
Net assets 14,514 13,344 42,254
Group's share of net assets 5,070 2,669 6,340
Goodwill - - 1,828
Carrying amount of interest in associate 5,070 2,669 8,168
Revenue 3,249 9,281 42,280
Profit 1,270 3,588 5,195
Other comprehensive income - (43) (K|
Total comprehensive income 1,270 3,545 5,206
Group’s share in total comprehensive income 444 710 781

National United Agg:g:z‘ile;d

2017 Finance Insurance [
House Company Company
Total assets 53,119 26,663 116,677
Total liabilities 38,583 12,367 79,616
Net assets 14,536 14,296 37,061
Group's share of net assets 5,077 2,859 5,559
Goodwill - - 1,828
Carrying amount of interest in associate 5,077 2,859 7,387
Revenue 4,691 8,684 52,339
Profit 1,202 3,081 5,686
Other comprehensive income - 198 193
Total comprehensive income 1,202 3,279 5,879
Group's share in total comprehensive income 461 691 1,506
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9 EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES (continued)

d) Reporting dates of financial information of associates

For equity accounting and for disclosing financial information of the Arabian Shield Cooperative
Insurance Company, the information taken from the unaudited interim financial information for the
nine months ended 30 September 2018 and 2017, For the other associates, the information is taken

from the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

10 REINSURERS’ SHARES OF INSURANCE TECHNICAL RESERVES

Outstanding claims recoverable from reinsurers (note 17)
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums (note 18)

2018 2017
6,153 5,369
6,289 4,611

12,442 9,980

Amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims paid by the Group on the contracts that are reinsured

are included in insurance receivables (note 7).

11 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Set out below are the Group's subsidiaries at 31 December 2018. Unless otherwise stated, they have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, that are held directly by the Group and the proportion
of ownership interests held equals to the voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation

or registration is also their principal place of business:
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11

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of the
entity

Place of
business /
country of

incorporation

Date of
incorporation

Ownership
interest held
by the Group

Ownership
interest held
by non-
controlling
interest

2018

2017

2018 | 2017

Principal
activities

Bahrain National
Insurance BSC

{c)

Bahrain

30 December
1998

100%

100%

Transact
various
types of
general
insurance
business.

Bahrain National
Life Assurance
BSC (c)

Bahrain

4 Qctober
2000

75%

75%

25% | 25%

Transact the
business of
life
assurance,
medical
insurance,
retirement
planning and
savings.

iAssist Middle
East WLL

Bahrain

14 January
2010

100%

100%

Transact the
business of
automobile
smash
repairs,
roadside
assistance
and
automobile
services.
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11 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

{/n thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

Subsidiary with material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests (NCI), before any intra-group elimination:

Bahrain National Life Assurance BSC (c) 2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 2,032 845
Placements with banks 675 2,022
Insurance and other receivables 1,840 1,495
Reinsurers' share of insurance technical reserves 2,244 1,521
Deferred acquisition cosls 161 129
Financial investments 11,843 11,358
Intangible assets 32 26
Equipment 27 10
Statutory deposits 50 50
Insurance technical reserves {6,925) {5,420)
Insurance payables (601) (883)
Other liabilities {1,400) {1,266)
Net assets (100 %) 9,978 9,887
Net assets attributable to NCI 2,504 2,479
Net premium earned 3,002 2,148
Net claims incurred (1,838) (1,084)
General and administration expenses - underwriting {586) {464)
Net commission expenses {257) {271)
Life assurance actuarial reserve charge 19 {35)
Other income 12 -
Net investment income 639 534
Impairment losses on investment (34) (89)
General and administration expenses - non-underwriting {105) (105}
Net profit 852 634
Other comprehensive income (341) 367
Total comprehensive income 511 1,001
NCI's share of profit {25%) 213 158
NCI's share of total comprehensive income (25%) 127 250
Cash flows from operating activities 407 69
Cash flows from / {used in) investing activities 1,194 (733)
Cash flows used in financing activities, before dividends to NCI (308) -
Cash flows used in financing activities, cash dividends io NCI (102} -
Donations paid (4) {12)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1,187 (676)
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12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2018 BNH BNH

Tower Building Total

in Seef in Sanad
Cost
At 1 January 2,798 1,924 4,722
Additions - 1 1
At 31 December 2,798 1,925 4,723
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 1,396 390 1,786
Depreciation 86 77 163
At 31 December 1,482 467 1,949
Net book value at 31 December 1,316 1,458 2,774
Total fair value at 31 December 4,145 | 1,964 | 6,109 |
This comprises (at net book valus):
Investment properties 1,316 1,458 2,744
Owner occupied (property) 1,190 299 1,488
Total net book value at 31 December 2,506 1,757 4,263

2017 BNH BNH

Tower Building Tota!

in Seef in Sanad
Cost
At 1 January 2,793 1,924 4,717
Additions 5 - 5
At 31 December 2,798 1,924 4,722
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 1,311 307 1,618
Depreciation 85 83 168
At 31 December 1,396 390 1,786
Net book value at 31 December 1,402 1,534 2,936
Total fair value at 31 December 11,304 | 3,682 | 14,986 |
This comprises (at net book value):
Investment properties 1,402 1,534 2,936
Owner occupied (property) 1,269 314 1,583
Total net book value at 31 December 2,671 1,848 4,519

The fair value was determined by external, independent property valuators, having appropriate
recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the
properties being valued,

The valuation for 2018 has been prepared on the basis of Market as defined by the RICS Valuation

Professional Standards (July 2017). The Income Capitalisation approach was applied in considering the
Market Value of the properties,
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12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The valuation methodology for 2017 depends on market supply/demand and prices traded, considering
the main key assumptions (location, area, population and building condition) and the use of the property
by using Market Needs Analyses (MNA) evaluation system in addition to the comparative evidences.

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2018 Goodwill Software | Development Total
cost

Cost

At 1 January 74 1,722 - 1,796

Additions S 46 69 115

At 31 December 74 1,768 69 1,911

Accumulated amortization

At 1 January = 1,585 - 1,585
Amortisation S 51 - 51
At 31 December “ 1,636 - 1,836
Net book value at 31 December 74 132 69 275
2017 Goodwill Software | Development Total
cost

Cost

At 1 January 74 1,924 10 2,008
Additions S 22 - 22
Disposals S (218) - (218)
Reclassified to property and equipment o (18) - (16)
Transfers & 10 {10} -
At 31 December 74 1,722 - 1,796

Accumulated amortization

At 1 January = 1,726 - 1,726
Amortisation S 80 - 80
Disposals - {218) - (218)
Reclassified to property and equipment - (3) (3)
At 31 December - 1,585 - 1,585
Net book value at 31 December 74 137 " 211
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14 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2018

Cost

At 1 January
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January

Depreciation

Disposals

At 31 December

Net book value at 31 December

2017

Cost

At 1 January
Additions
Disposals

Reclassified from intangible assets

At 31 December

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January
Depreciation

Disposals

Reclassified from intangible assets

At 31 December

Net book value at 31 December

Lands and | Machinery | Furniture Capital Total
buildings & work-in-
equipment | progress
4,747 749 1,547 46 7,089
- - 224 179 403
- - {28) - (28)
4,747 749 1,743 225 7,464
1,481 655 1,277 - 3,413
122 68 161 - as1
) - (28) - (28)
1,603 723 1,410 - 3,736
3,144 26 333 225 3,728
Lands and | Machinery | Furniture Capital Total
buildings & work-in-
equipment | progress
4,228 740 2,279 18 7,265
519 9 70 28 626
- - (818) - (818)
- - 16 - 16
4,747 749 1,547 46 7,089
1,359 575 1,802 - 3,836
122 80 190 - 392
- - (818) - {818)
- - 3 - 3
1,481 655 1,277 - 3413
3,266 94 270 46 3,676
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15 STATUTORY DEPOSITS

Statutory deposits are maintained by subsidiaries under the regulations of the Central Bank of Bahrain.
Such deposits, which depend on the nature of the insurance business, cannot be withdrawn except with
the approval of the Central Bank of Bahrain.

16 INSURANCE TECHNICAL RESERVES

2018 2017
Outstanding claims - gross (note 17) 13,573 11,432
Uneamed gross insurance premiums (note 18) 14,034 11,743
Unearned commissions income (note 27) 555 215
Life assurance actuarial reserve {(note 19) 3,166 3,038
31,328 26,428

17 OUTSTANDING CLAIMS
a) Claims development

The development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group’s ability to estimate the
ultimate value of claims.

The top half of each table below illustrates how the Group's estimate of total claims outstanding for
each accident year has changed at successive year-ends, for motor and non-motor excluding life
and medical businesses.

Total estimation of the ultimate claim cost comprises estimated amount of claims oulstanding and
claims IBNR.

The bottom half of the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount appearing in the

consolidated statement of financial position, with the exception of life assurance and medical
business.
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17 OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (continued)

{i) Gross insurance claims for general insurance business

Accident year 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total

Estimate of ultimate claims costs:
Al end of reporting year 6,485 5420 3,883 7275 5550 8,850 4,772 4798 6,577 8,027 61,637

One year later 9,692 5,950 4,632 7512 7510 8928 5833 5813 6,512 62,382
Two year later 9,658 6,074 5140 6,059 7957 9433 50934 5788 56,043
Three year later 9,389 6,120 4,970 5,972 7901 9,629 5,729 49,720
Four year later 9573 6,072 4948 5818 7.979 9,580 43,979
Five year later 10,442 5,940 4,789 5,897 8,058 35,126
Six year later 10,399 5313 4,869 5,926 26,507
Seven year later 10,434 5,385 5,055 20,874
Eight year later 10,644 5,372 16,016
Nine year later 11,143 11,143

Current estimale of
cumulative claims (A}
Cumulative payments

11,143 5372 5,055 5,926 8,058 9,589 5729 5788 6512 8,027 71,189

to date (B) 10,820 5,336 4,685 5,793 7775 9251 5525 5142 4,764 58,090
Total (A-B) 323 g 370 133 283 338 204 646 1,748 8,027 | 12,100
Reserve in respect of vears prior to 2008 27
[ Total gross reserve included in the consolidated statement of financial position 12,136

(i) Gross outstanding claims for life and medical insurance business amounted to BD 1,437 thousand.

{iii) Net insurance claims for general insurance business

| Accident year 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total
Estimate of ultimate claims cosls:

Atend of reporting year ~ 3.908 1,986 1,948 34090 2,281 2083 2201 2,888 4477 5705| 30887

One year later 4,046 2,383 2,259 3,356 2874 2794 3,122 23,360 3,452 27,646
Two year later 3,949 2,496 2263 3,279 3260 3142 3,442 2,215 24,046
Three year later 3,729 2,590 2179 3,153 3,320 3,364 2,872 21,207
Four year later 3,735 2,602 2,117 3132 3,403 2993 17.982
Five year later 3802 2,460 2,104 3178 3,286 14,831
Six year later 3,767 2437 2,193 3,138 11,535
Seven year later 3,759 2463 2,240 8,462
Eight year later 3,783 2442 6,225
Nine vear later 3,826 3,826
Current estimate of

cumulative claims (A} 3,826 2,442 2240 3,138 3,286 2993 2872 2215 3452 5705 32,169

Cumulative payments

to date (B) 3,790 2434 2,208 3,113 3242 2932 2870 2,014 2663 25,267
Total (A-B) 36 8 32 25 44 61 2 201 789 5705 6,902
Net reserve in respect of years prior to 2008 3
Total net reserve included in the consolidated statement of financial position 6,905

(iv) Net outstanding claims for life and medical insurance business amounted to BD 515 thousand.
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17 OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (continued)

b) Changes in insurance assets and liabilities — general insurance

2018 2017

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
Reported claims 9,282 5,369 3,913 8,439 5,405 3,034
IBNR 2,150 - 2,150 1,245 - 1,245
Total at 1 Jan 11,432 5,369 6,063 9,684 5,405 4,279
Changes 23,535 11,552 11,883 24,226 11,938 12,288
Settled (21,394) (10,768) | (10,626) (22,478) (11.974) | (10,504)
Balance at
31 December 13,573 6,153 7,420 11,432 5,369 6,063
Reported claims 11,218 6,153 5,065 9,282 5,369 3913
IBNR 2,355 - 2,355 2,150 - 2,150
Balance as at
31 December 13,573 6,153 7,420 11,432 5,369 6,063

c) Sensitivity analysis

The following tables provide an analysis of the sensitivity of profit or loss and total equity to changes
in the assumptions used to measure life and non-life insurance contract provisions and reinsurance
assets at the reporting date. The analysis has been prepared for a change in variable with other
assumptions remaining constant,

Profit or loss & Equity
Non-Life Insurance 2018 2017

Expense rate

1 percent increase (39) {35)
1 percent decrease 39 35

Expected loss ratio
1 percent increase (116) (118)
1 percent decrease 116 118 '

Profit or loss & Equity

Life Assurance 2018 2017
Demagraphic assumptions

1 percent increase in base mortality rate {32) (20)
1 percent decrease in base mortality rate 32 20

Expense assumptions
1 percent increase (3) (3)
1 percent decrease 3 <)

Expected loss ratio
1 percent increase (4) (4)
1 percent decrease 4 4
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17 OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (continued)

The Group has certain single insurance contract which it considers as risks of high severity but very
low frequency. The Group re-insures substantial part of these risks and its loss on any one single
event is limited to a loss of BD 125 thousand in case of property and marine and BD 75 thousand in
case of causality whereas in case of motor losses Group’s exposure to a single event is limited to
BD 100 thousand.

d) Movements in outstanding claims:

Gross outstanding Reinsurers’ share Net outstanding
claims claims
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
At 1 January 11,432 9,684 5,369 5,405 6,063 4,279
Net movement
during the year 2,141 1,748 784 (36) 1,357 1,784
At 31 December 13,573 11,432 6,153 5,369 7.420 6,063

18 NET CHANGE IN RESERVES FOR UNEARNED INSURANCE PREMIUMS

Unearned gross Reinsurers’ share Net unearned
insurance premiums premiums
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
At 1 January 11,743 11,885 4,611 5,118 7,132 6,767
Net movement
during the year 2,291 (142) 1,678 (507) 613 365
At 31 December 14,034 11,743 6,289 4,611 7,745 7,132

19 LIFE ASSURANCE ACTUARIAL RESERVE AND ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

2018 2017
Life assurance actuarial reserve
Balance at 1 January 3,038 2,804
Contributions received 220 208
Benefits paid (87) (186)
Actuarial adjustment on life assurance obligation (19) 35
Management fee (51) {44)
Policyholder's share of net investment income 65 221
Balance at 31 December 3,166 3,038
Life assurance actuarial reserve per consolidated statement
of financial position 3,166 3,038
Actuarial estimate of the present value
of future benefit obligations at 31 December 3,166 3,038

The actuarial estimate has been prepared by independent actuaries, Actuscope Consulting Actuaries,
Lebanon. The mortality rate assumptions used was 45% (2017: 45%) of the 75-80 Ultimate Mortality US
Table and the valuation interest rate was set at 4.5% p.a. (2017: 4.5% p.a.). Allowances have been made
for reinsurance, guaranteed bonuses, renewal expenses unexpired risks and contingencies where
appropriate.
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20 INSURANCE PAYABLES

21

22

2018 2017
Policyholders ~ Claims 288 159
Insurance and reinsurance companies 4,311 3,814
Balance at 31 December 4,599 3,973

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit and market risks for insurance payables are included in

note 28.

OTHER PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES

2018 2017
Premiums received in advance 1,331 1,146
Vehicle repairers and spare parts 1,793 1,410
Medical claims care fund 381 3398
Provision for employees' benefits 498 485
Employess' leaving indemnities 437 454
Cash colletral 324 -
Unclaimed dividends - prior years 275 400
Hit and run levy fee 13 13
Other 1,926 1,162
Balance at 31 December 7,096 5,586

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COST

As at the 31 December 2018, the Group employed 161 Bahrainis (2017 154 Bahrainis) and 59
expatriates (2017: 65 expatriates).

Bahraini employees are covered by the pension scheme of Social Insurance Organisation of the
Government of Bahrain. Employees and the Group contribute monthly to this scheme on a fixed-
percentage-of-salaries basis. The Group's contributions in respect of Bahraini employees for 2018

amounted to BD 219 thousand (2017: BD 226 thousand), which cover other benefits besides pension
entitlements.

The Group also offers, on a voluntary basis, to its Bahraini employees, a defined contribution plan, which
is determined by the annual contributions paid by the Group and the employees to a post-employment
benefit plan, together with investment returns arising from the contributions. The Group’s contributions
in 2018 amounted to BD 79 thousand (2017: BD 76 thousand). The scheme is administerad by Bahrain
National Life Assurance Company on behalf of the Group.

The liability towards the retirement plan as at 31 December 2018 amounted to BD 689 thousand
(2017: BD 721 thousand) and is included in the Life assurance actuarial reserve (note 19). The liability
is funded by way of contributions from the retirement scheme. The contributions received are invested
as part of policyholders’ investments (note 8 d).

Expatriate employees on limited-term contracts are entitled to leaving indemnities payable under the
Bahrain Labour Law for the Private Sector, based on length of service and final remuneration. The

liability, which is un-funded, is provided for on the basis of the notional cost had all employees left service
at the reporting date.
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22 RETIREMENT BENEFITS COST (continued)

Movement in employees' leaving indemnities:

2018 2017
At beginning of year 454 3
Indemnities and advances paid (46) (10)
Charge during the year 38 73
Release during the year {9) -
Balance at 31 December 437 454
23 SHARE CAPITAL
Number Amount Number Amount
2018 2018 2017 2017
a) Authorised shares 100 fils each | ;44 099,000 20,000 | | 200,000,000 20,000
b) Issued and fully paid 119,175,000 11,918 | | 113,500,000 11,350

c) Treasury shares:

The Company's Articles of Association permit the Company to hold up to 10 % (or such other limit as
may be prescribed under law) of its own issued shares as treasury shares,

Number Amount Number Amount
2018 2018 2017 2017
Balance at 1 January 6,253,816 1,868 6,253,816 1,868
Bonus shares issued 312,690 - - -
Balance at 31 December 6,566,506 1,868 6,253,816 1,868

d) Performance per 100 fils share (excluding treasury shares)

2018 2017
Basic and diluted earnings per share - fils 29.4 18.8
Proposed cash dividend - fils 15.0 12.0
Net asset value —fils 461.2 469.2
Stock exchange price at 31 December  fils 360.0 410.0
Market capitalization at 31 December — in thousands of BD 42,903 46,535
Price/Earnings ratio at 31 December 12.2 21.8

e) Earnings per share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the net profit atiributable to the shareholders for the
year of BD 3,279 thousand (2017: BD 2,095 thousand), attributable to 111,356,306 ordinary shares
(2017: BD 111,356,306 ordinary shares) for basic earnings, being the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diiuted earnings per share have not been presented separately because Group has no dilutive
potential ordinary shares in issue.
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23 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

f) Major shareholders

Names and nationalities of the major shareholders and the number of shares held in which they have
an interest of 5% or more outstanding shares:

Nationality | No. of shares | Shareholding
(%)
National Insurance Company Iraqi 7,808,734 6.55
Abdulhameed Zainal Mohamed Zainal Bahraini 6,904,061 5.79
Bahrain National Holding Co. (Treasury shares) Bahraini 6,566,756 5.51

g) Share premium

During the 2005 financial year, the Company issued 20,000,000 shares @ 300 fils (share premium
200 fils) per share on a rights basis.

h) Additional information on shareholding pattern

i. The Company has only one class of equity shares and the holders of the shares have equal voting
rights.

ii. Distribution schedule of equity shares, setting out the number of holders and percentage in the
following categories:

Categories* Number of Number of shares % of total
shareholders outstanding shares

Less than 1% 581 50,713,995 42.55

1% up to less than 5 % 22 47,181,454 39.60

5 % up to less than 10 % 3 21,279,551 17.85

TOTAL 606 119,175,000 100.00

* Expressed as % of total issues and fully paid shares of the Company.
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24 RESERVES

a) Statutory reserve
Commercial Companies Law, which applies to the parent company, requires appropriation of 10% of
the net profit each year, until the reserve equals 50% of the paid-up capital. Commercial Companies
Law, which applies to Bahrain Nationa! Insurance, Bahrain National Life Assurance Company and
iAssist, requires appropriation, in respect of general and life insurance companies, of 10% of the net
profit each year, until the reserve equals 50% of the paid-up capital. These limits are applied
separately to each company within the Group.

b) General reserves
General reserves are appropriated from retained earnings and are available for distribution.

c) Fair value reserve
Gains or losses arising on re-measurement of available-for-sale securities are recognised in the fair
value reserve. Upon de-recognition or impairment of any security, the corresponding gain or loss,
recognised earlier direclly in the investment fair value reserve, is transferred to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

25 PROPOSED APPROFPRIATIONS AND DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

2018 2017
Profit as per consolidated statement of profit or loss 3,532 2,253
Net profit attributable to non-controlling interest {223) (158)
Profit attributable to shareholders of Parent company 3,309 2,095
Proposed appropriations:
Transfer to statutory reserve 284 -
Dividend to shareholders 1,689 1,287
Bonus share to shareholders - 568
Retained earnings 1,306 240
3,279 2,095

Proposed director's remuneration is BD 106 thousand (2017: BD 116 thousand). The appropriation of the
2018 profit is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

For 2017, the Company also proposed to distribute 5 bonus shares for every 100 held by shareholders.
The Company has only one class of equity shares and the holders of these shares have equal voting

rights.

26 GROSS INSURANCE PREMIUMS

2018 2017
Direct Business 33,437 28,701
Inward Business 144 186
33,581 28,887
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27 NET COMMISSION AND FEE INCOME

28

29

2018 2017
Commission and fee income 2,002 1,592
Commission expenses (1,660) {1,372)
Adjustment for unearned commission income (340) (66)
Adjustment for deferred commission expense 58 {52)
60 102

Movements in unearned commission income and deferred commission expense:

Unearned commission Deferred commission
income expense
2018 2017 2018 2017
At 1 January 215 149 576 628
Net movement during the year 340 66 58 (52)
555 215 634 576
NET INVESTMENT INCOME
2018 2017
Net (losses) / gains on disposal of financial investments (171) 1
Transfer from other comprehensive income on disposal of available-
for-sale securities 805 322
Valuation (losses) / gains on trading securities (59) 86
Foreign exchange gains 37 12
Amortisation of premiums on held-to-maturity securities (6) {(11)
Interest income 1,065 987
Dividend income 696 672
Investment administration expenses (50) (60)
Policyholders’ share of investment income (65) {(221)
Investment properties’ income 376 319
Depreciation charges on investment properties (163) (168)
Other investment properties’ expenses (146) (60)
2,319 1,889
IMPAIRMENT ON INVESTMENT
2018 2017
Opening balance 846 759
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of securities (52) {221)
Impairment losses for the year 50 308
844 846
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30 EXPENSES

a) General and administration expenses - underwriting 2018 2017
Employee costs 2,107 2177
Depreciation and amortisation 236 344
Other costs 1,763 1,510

4,106 4,031

b) General and administration expenses - non-underwriting 2018 2017
Employee costs 1,254 1,232
Depreciation and amortisation 165 128
Other costs 310 423

1,729 1,783

31 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For operational and management reporting purposes, the Group is organised into five business
segments:

Motor Insurance segment;
Property & General segment;
Medical Insurance Segment”;
Life Assurance segment and;
Corporate segment.

Motor Insurance segment comprises motor comprehensive insurance covers and third-party insurance
covers and other services related to motor.

Property and Casualty Insurance segment comprises property, general accidents, engineering, marine
and aviation. Medical Insurance segment comprises medical insurance products.

Life Assurance segment comprises group life, group credit life, decrease in term assurance, level term
assurance and saving scheme plans.

Corporate segment comprises administrative and financial operations services for the Group's
companies.

These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.
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2018 Motor PrGoep : :g|& Medical As slj::nce Corporate i%?ﬁ::::g&" Total

Gross insurance premiums 13,079 12,143 5,524 3,050 - (215) 33,581

Net premiums earned 12,668 1,083 2,082 920 - (52) 16,701

Net claims incurred (9,575) (609) (1,398) (441) - 40 (11,983)

General and administration

expenses - underwriting (2,717} (923) (321) (265) - 120 {4,106)

Net commission {(expense) /

income (370) 687 (312) 55 - - 60

Actuarial adjustment on life

assurance obligation - - - 19 - - 19

Other income g 12 6 6 - - 33

Net underwriting results 15 250 57 294 - 108 724

MNet investment income 1,031 1,031 162 477 633 {1,015) 2,319

Impairment losses on

invesiment (8) {8) (8) {26) - - {50)

Share of profit of equity

accounted investees - - - - 1,380 718 2,098

MNet income from road assist

services 125 - - - - - 125

Carporate Services fees - - - - 591 {591) -

Other income - - - - 5 - 5

General and administration

expenses - non-underwriting (336) (150) {65) {40) {1,735) 597 {1,729)
| Segment results 827 1,123 146 705 874 {183) 3,492
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31 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

2017 Molor Pg’g:;gl& Medical Asslt-.l'::nce Corporate %%?33:::2&" Total
Gross insurance premiums 13,051 9,520 3,838 2,691 - (213) 28,887
Net premiums earned 12,771 973 1,261 887 - (72) 15,820
Net claims incurred (10,818) {432) (682) (402) - 46 {12,288)
General and administration

expenses - underwriting {(2,700) (1,097) (209) (255) - 230 (4,031)
Net commission (expense) /

income {(385) 758 (249) (22) - - 102
Actuarial adjustment on life

assurance obligation - - - (35) - - (35)
Net underwriting results {1,132) 202 121 173 - 204 {432)
Net investment income 862 863 183 351 573 (943) 1,889
Impairment losses on

investment (109) (110) (30) (59) - - (308)
Share of profit of equity

accounted investees - - - - 2,051 6825 2,676
Gains on partial sale of equity

accounted investees - - - - - 114 114
Net income from road assist

services 97 - - - - - 97
Corporate Services fees - - - - 591 (591) -
General and administration

expenses - non-underwriting {336) {150) {65) {40) {1,791) 599 (1,783)
Segment results {618) 805 209 425 1,424 8 2,253

Assets and liabilities are not reported on segment basis as these are managed on an aggregate basis.

Cash flows relating to segments are not disclosed separately as these are managed on an aggregate
basis.

Geographical information

. Other
2018 Bahrain GCC Countries Total
Gross insurance premiums 33,551 30 - 33,581
Non-current assets 27,827 12,723 11,336 51,886
. Other
2017 Bahrain GCC Countries Total
Gross insurance premiums 28,701 186 - 28,887
Non-current assets 27,706 12,234 12,024 51,964

In presenting the geographic information, segment revenue is based on the location of the customers and
segment assets were based on the geographic location of the assets.

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of financial investments which are intended to be held for

more than ane year, equity accounted invitees, investment properties, property and equipment and
statutory deposits.
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32 INSURANCE CONTRACTS, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

a)

b)

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Department reporting
to a Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's
risk management policies, update the Group's and individual subsidiaries’ risk registers and ensuring
that there are risk mitigation controls in place. The committee reports regularly to the Group’s Audit,
Compliance and Risk Committee on its activities.

The Group’s risk management department has established a framework to identify, quantify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in internal practices, technological developments and market conditions. The Group,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group's Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee oversees how management monitors
compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of
the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group's Audit,
Compliance and Risk Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit.

Insurance Risk Management

The activity of the Group is to issue contracts of insurance to its personal and corporate clients. The
risk under an insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty
of the amount payable under the insurance contract resulting from such occurrence referred to as
the claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is fortuitous, random and therefore
unpredictable. The principal risks that the Group faces in writing a portfolio of insurance contracts are
the frequency of occurrence of the insured events and the severity of resulting claims. The Group's
risk profile is improved by having sufficient large numbers, diversification by nature of risk and
geographical spread of these risks. This reduces the vulnerability of the Group’s financial position
and profits to large losses or a high frequency as thers will be a larger income to sustain such impacts.
The exposure of high frequency and severe large losses are also protected by a comprehensive
reinsurance program placed with highly reputable international reinsurers,

{i) Underwriting Folicy

The Group principally issues insurance contracts covering marine (cargo and hull), motor (own
damage and third party liability), property (material damage and business interruption), liability
and general accident. These policies usually cover twelve months duration. For the above general
insurance contracts the most significant risks arise from accidents including motor or other
incidents causing fire and accidental damage, negligence resulting in accidents or liabilities
against third parties, natural disasters and other activities causing damage by riots, civil
commotion and terrorist acts. The level of risks vary in relation to the location of the risk insured
and type of risk insured and by industry.

The Group has also a subsidiary issuing life and medical contracts of insurance. The medical and
group life insurance contracts are of an annual nature and therefore similar in treatment and
exposures as to the insurance contracts above. There are however long term life insurance
contracts which require a different treatment as to the expected claims arising out of these
contracts. For the latter the subsidiary reviews actuarial the technical funds required to meet any
of the future liabilities that can arise out of these contracts.
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32 INSURANCE CONTRACTS, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

The subsidiary has in place detailed underwriting guidelines and retention policies and procedures
which regulate the acceptance of these risks and limits who is authorized and accountable for
concluding insurance and reinsurance contracts and at what terms and conditions. Compliance
with these guidelines is regularly monitored and developments in the global, regional and local
markets are closely observed, reacting where necessary with appropriate measures that are
translated without delay into underwriting guidelines if and when required.

(ii) Reinsurance Policy

As part of the underwriting process the next risk control measure in respect of the insurance risk
is the transfer of the risks to third parties through a reinsurance contract or facility. The Group has
in place proportional facilities, referred to as treaties, which are used to transfer a proportion of
the risks automatically subject to pre-agreed conditions with the reinsurers. The portion of the risk
retained by the Group is also guided by a strict retention policy adopted by the Group. Any claim
will be recovered in the same proportion. Furthermore the Group also has in place non-
proportional treaties which pay a proportion of losses above a pre-agreed priority level for each
loss or an aggregation of losses arising out of one event. The placements of reinsurance contracis
are diversified with a panel of internationally reputed reinsurers so that the Group is not dependent
on a single reinsurer or a reinsurance contract. The Group also transfers risk on a case by case
basis referred to as facultative reinsurance. This is used in cases when the risk under
consideration is either too large for the treaty capacities or else has risks which are excluded from
the treaties. In this case the Group seeks internationally rated reinsurers but also places some
small shares in the local markets as exchange of business.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. Although the Group has reinsurance
arrangements, it does not, however, discharge the Group's liability as primary insurer and thus a
credit risk exposure remains with respect to reinsurance ceded to the extent that any reinsurer
may be unable to meet its obligations under such reinsurance arrangements. The Group
minimizes such credit risk by entering into reinsurance arrangements with reinsurers having good
credit ratings, which are reviewed on a regular basis. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is
considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial strength prior to finalization of any
contract. This review is performed by the Risk Management Committee which also monitors extent
of single exposures.

Reserve risks are conirolled by constantly monitoring the provisions for insurance claims that have
been submitted but not yet settled and by amending the provisions, if deemed necessary.

(iii) Terms and conditions of insurance contracts

An overview of the terms and conditions of various contracts written by the Group, the territories
in which these contracts are written and the key factors upon which the timing and uncertainty of
future cash flows of these contracts are depend are detailed in the following table:

Type of contract Terms and conditions Key factors affecting future cash flows
Property and This contract indemnifies the insured | The risk on any policy varies according to
Engineering against material damage to the property of | many factors such as location, age,

the insured being buildings, contents, | occupancy, weather conditions and safety
machinery and equipment, caused by | measures in place. The events insured
specified perils, or against all risks subject | against are foruitous, sudden and
lo specific exclusion and limitations. The | unforeseen. Claims have to be notified within
insured can extend the policy as the loss | a specified period and a surveyor and/or loss
can also affect the potential income of the | adjustor is appointed in most cases. The loss
insured and therefore covers loss of | would be the cost to repair, reinstate or
income based on this business | replace the assets damaged bringing the
interruption. insured to the same position before the loss.
In cases of business interruption losses, time
for completion are key factors influencing the
level of claims under these policies.
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32 INSURANCE CONTRACTS, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Type of contract

Terms and conditions

Koy faclors affecting future cash flows

Casualty {General
Accident and Liability)

damage.

Under these contracts, compensation is
paid for injury suffered by individuals,
including employees or members of
public. And to indemnify the insured
against legal liability as a result of an act
or omission inured against causing either
bodily injury or third parly property

are generally agreed benefits or amounts
easily quantified. In the case of liability
claims these are very much dependent on
factors beyond the control of the parties
involved such as court proceedings and
identification of medical conditions in the
case of badily injury. Estimaling claims
provisions for these claims involves
uncertainties such as the reporting lag, the
number of parlies involved in the claim,
whether the insured event is over multiple
time periods and the potential amounts of the
claim. The majorily of bodily injury claims
are decided based on the laws in force and
court judgment, and are settled within twa -
three years.

Marine Hull and Cargo

of the hull.

These are very standard contracls within
the international spectrum and indemnify
the insured against loss of cargo and in
the case of hull against material damage
to the hull or liability arising out of the use

The nature of marine business especially
cargoe is cross border movement of goods
and therefore tend to take longer to quantify
or lo establish the cause of loss.
Underwriters use various loss adjustors to
protect their interest  The main risk is the
establishing the correct cause of loss. Most
of these losses will initiate rights of recovery
from third parlies and even this presents
some uncertainty as fo quantum and time.

Motor Motor insurance conltracts provide cover
in respect of policyholder's private cars
and their liability to third parties in respect
of damage to property and injury. The
exposure on molor insurance contracls is
normally limited to the replacement value
of the vehicle and a policy limit in respect
of third party damage. Exposure to third
party bodily injury is unlimited in
accordance with statutory requirements

In general, claims lags are minor and claim
complexity is relatively low. The frequency
of claims is affected by adverse weather
conditions, and the volume of claims is
higher in adverse weather conditions. The
number of claims is also connected with the
economic activity, which affects the amount
of traffic activity. The majority of bodily injury
claims are decided based on the laws in
force and court judgment, and are settled
within two — three years.

Medical

are fixed.

These contracts pay benefils for medical
treatment and hospital expenses. The
policyholder is indemnified for only part of
the cost of medical treatment or benefits

Claims under these contracts depend on
both the incidence of policyholders becoming
il and the duration over which they remain ill.
Claims are generally notified promptly and
can be settled without delay. Premium
revisions are responded reasonably quickly
{o adverse claims experience.

59




Bahrain National Holding Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(In thousands of Bahraini Dinars)

32 INSURANCE CONTRACTS, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

in which a single coniract covers an entire
group of people. Typically, the
policyholder is an employer or an entity
and the policy covers the employees or
members of the group. These contracts
indemnify the fife of the policyholder over
a defined period.

|_Type of contract Terms and conditions Koy factors affecting future cash flows
Term life These contracts indemnify the life of the | Claims reporting lags are minor and claim
policyholder over a defined period. complexity is relatively low. The exposure of
the Company and amount of claim is limited
to the policy value.
Group life These contracts are type of life insurance | Claims reporting tags are minor and claim

complexity is relatively low. The exposure of
the Company and amount of claim is limited
to the policy value.

Group Credit life

These contracts are type of life insurance
designed to pay off a borrower's debt if the
borrower dies. The face value of a credit
life insurance  policy  decreases
proportionately with the outstanding loan
amount as the loan is paid off over time,
until both reach zero value.

Claims reporting lags are minor and claim
complexity is relatively low. The exposure of
the Company and amount of claim is limited
to the policy value.

Group retirement plans

These contracts pay benefits based on
employer terms and conditions in case of
the death, disability or retirement of the
participants. The  policyholder s
indemnified based on fixed pre-
determined benefits considering period of
membership, accumulated coniributions,
administration or surrender fees and
bonus return, when applicable.

Surrenders and benefits under these
contracts depend on both the life or
determined disability of

participants. Surrenders and benefits are
generally notified promptly and can be
settled without delay from the participants
portfolio. Contributions are received on
limely basis.

Individual savings
plans

These contracts are spill into 3 categories:
Future Security Plan (FSP), Child
Education Plans and Endowment with
profit Plans.

These plans include protection benefits
such as life insurance, waiver of premium
and permanent disability cover.

Al the policyholders are given a
guaranteed cash value schedule at policy
issue date for the whole duration of their
policy.

Surrenders and benefits under these
contracts depend on both the life or
determined disability of parlicipants.
Surrenders and benefils are generally
notified promptly and can be setlled without
delay from the participants portfolio.
Contributions are received on timely basis.
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{iv) Risk exposure and concentration of insurance risk
The following table shows the Group's exposure to general and life insurance risk {based on the
carrying value of insurance provisions at the reporting date) per category of business. The table
also shows the geographical concentration of these risks and the extent to which the Group has
covered these risks by reinsurance.

2018 General Life Total
Geographical area Insurance | Assurance

Bahrain

Gross insurance premiums 30,501 3,050 33,551
Retained premiums 16,388 920 17,308
Other countries

Gross insurance premiums 30 - 30
Retained premiums 6 - 6
Total

Gross insurance premiums 30,531 3,050 33,581
Retained premiums 16,394 920 17,314
2017 General Life Total
Geographical area Insurance | Assurance

Bahrain

Gross insurance premiums 26,010 2,691 28,701
Retained premiums 15,260 887 16,147
Other countries

Gross insurance premiums 186 - 186
Retained premiums 38 - 38
Total

Gross insurance premiums 26,196 2,691 28,887
Retained premiums 15,298 887 16,185

c) Capital Management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investors, creditors and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors
monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as net operating income divided by total
shareholders’ equity, excluding non-controlling interests.

The Group's objectives for managing capital are:

» to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

* to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately
with the level of risk.

All of the regulated companies in the Group are supervised by regulatory bodies that set out certain
minimum capital requirements. It is the Group’s policy to hold capital as an aggregate of the capital
requirement of the relevant supervisory body and a specified margin, to absorb changes in both
capital and capital requirements.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell

assets. There were no significant changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during
the year.
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d)

The Group has a system of allocating risk based capital to its high level business units and
operations. This Economic Capital Mode! is used to create benchmarks for the management to gauge
and guide their performance and also ensure a good foundation for decision making and added
comfort to the Board.

Financial Risk Management

The Group has exposure to the following risks:
* credit risk

o liquidity risk

e market risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management
of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial
statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Department reporting
to a Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and manitoring the Group's
risk management policies, update the Group's and individual subsidiaries’ risk registers and ensuring
that there are risk mitigation controls in place. The committee reports regularly to the Group’s Audit,
Compliance and Risk Committee on its activities.

The Group’s risk management department has established a framework to identify, quantify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks
and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in internal praclices, technological developments and market conditions. The Group, through
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group’s Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee oversees how management monitors compliance
with the Group's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group's Audit, Compliance
and Risk Commitiee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit.

{i) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party will fail to discharge its obligations causing the other party to
incur a financial loss. Key areas where the Group is exposed to credit risk are;
- reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities;
- amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;
- amounts due from insurance contract holders:
- amounts due from insurance intermediaries;
- statutory deposits;
- cash and placements with banks and financial institutions; and
- financial investments - debt instruments.

The Group's cash is largely placed with national and international banks. Credit risk on receivables
is limited to local policyholders, which are carried, net of provision for bad and doubtful
receivables, and to insurance and reinsurance companies, local and foreign. To control the credit
risk, the Group compiles company-wide data on receivables. The Group monitors its credit risk
with respect to receivables from policyholders in accordance with defined policies and procedures.
Credit risk in respect of dues from insurance and reinsurance companies is sought to be
minimised by ceding business only to companies with good credit rating in the London, Eurapean
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and Middle Eastern markets. Credit risk in respect of financial investments (debt instruments) is
managed by the Group by monitoring credit exposures and continually assessing the
creditworthiness of counterparties.

Management of credit risk

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single
counterparty, or groups of counterparty, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks
are subject lo an annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level of credit risk by category and
territory are set and monitored by the management.

The Group's exposure to individual policyholders and groups of policyhalders is monitored by the
individual business unils as part of its credit control process. Financial analyses are conducted
for significant exposures to individual policyholders or homogenous groups of policyholders.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Group's
liability as primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Group remains
liable for the payment to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an
annual basis by reviewing their financial strength prior to finalization of any contract.

Overalf exposure (o credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Financial assets 2018 2017
Receivables:
- Policyholders 4,357 2,970
- Insurance and reinsurance companies 4,402 5,000
- Others 1,565 1,458
Financial investment securities:
- Fair value through profit or loss - debt instruments 867 572
- Available-for-sale debt instruments 9,869 7,534
- Held to maturity securities 3,989 4,300
Cash and cash equivalents with banks 11,175 3,090
Placements with banks 3,497 9,333
Statutory deposits 125 125
39,846 34,382

The carrying amounts of financial assets do not include any assets that either are past due or
impaired. The Group has no financial assets or reinsurance assets that would be past due or
impaired whose terms have been renegotialed. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security or any credit enhancements (such as guarantees, credit derivatives and netling
arrangements that do not qualify for offset),

Concentrations of credit risk

The Group monitors concentrations of exposures by industry sector and geographic location of
the counterparty as well as by individual counterparties. Counterparty concentration occurs mainly
because of the investment management accounts maintained with the various investment
bankers. Geographical concentrations at the reporting date have been presented in note 34.
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The specific concentration of risk from the top counterparties where receivables for any one
counterparty or group of connected counterparties is BD 1 million or more at the year-end is as

follows:
2018 2017

Debt instruments:

Government of Bahrain 7,676 5,148
Placements and bank accounts:

National Bank of Bahrain 3,526 3,547
Ahli United Bank 2,832 3,112
Arab Bank 2,227 1,917
Mashreq Bank 1,659 2,181
Salam Bank 1,450 432

Assets that are past due

The Group has insurance and other receivables that are past due but not impaired at the reporting
date. The Group believes that impairment of these receivables is not appropriate on the basis of
stage of collection of amounts owed to the Group and the net settlement position with the

counterparty. An age analysis of the carrying amounts of these insurance and other receivables
is presented as follows:

Financial assets | Neither past
due nor - d“eib“; "ot | Individually impaired
impaired impaire
2018 More Provision LG
Less than 90 | 91- 180 than 180 Gross for
days days days Amount impairment
Receivables:
- Policyholders 2,163 1,342 852 691 {691) 4,357
- Insurance and
Reinsurance 1,497 813 2,002 750 (750) 4,402
companies
- Others 1,555 10 - 72 (72) 1,565
5,215 2,165 2,944 1,513 (1,513) 10,324
Financial assets Neither past
due nor Pas_t d"e.bl:jt L Individually impaired
impaired impaire
2017 More .. Total
Less than 90 | 91-180 than 180 Gross Provision for
days days da Amount impairment
VS
Receivables:
- Policyholders 1,486 678 806 484 (484) 2,970
- Insurance and
Reinsurance
companies 1,332 1,151 2,517 655 (655) 5,000
- Others 1,624 6 - 2 (2) 1,630
4,442 1,835 3,323 1,141 {1,141) 9,600
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32 INSURANCE CONTRACTS, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations and
commilments associated with its insurance contracts and financial iiabilities in cash or other
financial assets. Liquidity risk may arise from inability o sell a financial asset at a price close to
its fair value.

Liquidity requirements are monitored on a regular basis and the management ensures that
sufficient funds are available to meet any future commitments. In the normal course of business,
the Group does not normally resort to borrowings but, given its gearing, has the ability to raise
funds from banks at short notice. The maturity profile of the Group’s investments is set out in
note 32,

Management of liquidity risk

The Group limits liquidity risks by continually reconciling the cash flows and assets of the Group
with payment liabilities. Methodologies adopted for Group assets and liabilities valuation have
been disclosed in significant accounting policies in note 4. The Group is exposed to daily calls on
its available cash resources mainly from claims arising from short-term insurance contracis.

The Board sets limits on the liquidity of investment in the portfolio apart from a minimum liquidity
reserve that is updated every quarter by the risk management department based on rolling cash
flows trends.

The Group's approach to managing its liquidity risk is as follows:

* Budgets are prepared, to forecast monthly inflows and cash outflows from insurance and
investment contracts;

* Assels purchased by the Group are required to satisfy specified liquidity requirements and
lirmits;

= The Group maintains adequate cash and liquid assets to meet daily calls on its insurance
and investment contracts:

* The Group has a board approved Liquidity Contingency Plan, that will be activated in the
event of a liquidity event; and

 The Group also maintain a minimum liquidity reserve that is updated every quarter based on
cash flows trends.

Exposure fo liquidity risk
An analysis of the contractual maturities of the Group's financial liabilities {including contractual
undiscounted interest payments) is presented as follows:

2018 Contractual undiscounted cash flows
Carrying | Less than 1-2 2-5 tll‘:l:r:es

Financial liabilities e 1 year years years years

Policyholders’ liabilities 288 288 - -

Insurance/reinsurance companies 4,311 4,311 - -

Other payables 7,096 7,096 - -

2017 Contractual undiscounted cash flows
Carrying | Less than 1-2 2-5 More than

Financial liabilities amount 1 year years years 5 years

Policyholders’ liabilities 159 159 - -

Insurance/reinsurance companies 3,814 3,814 - -

Other payables 5,586 5,586 - - |
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32 INSURANCE CONTRACTS, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

(ifi} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices on account of factors specific to the individual security or to its issuer or factors
affecting the securities market. The Group is exposed to market risk with respect to its investments
in securities. The Group manages market risk by maintaining a well-diversified portfolio and by
continuous monitoring of pertinent developments in international securities markets. In addition,
the Group actively monitors the key factors that are likely to affect the prices of securities, including
operational and financial performance of investees. The geographical concentration of the
Group's investments is set out in note 34.

Management of market risks

All entities in the Group manage market risks locally in accordance with their asset/liability
management framework. The boards of each entity approve the allocation limits and investment
strategy. At Group level, the Board monitors the asset aflocation and investment performance on
a quarterly basis.

For each of the major components of market risk, the Group has policies and procedures in place
which detail how each risk should be managed and monitored. The management of each of these
major components of major risk and the exposure of the Group at the reporting date to each majar
risk are addressed below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
the market rates of interest.

The Group's short-term deposits are at fixed interest rates and mature within one year.
Investments in Government bonds are at fixed interest rates. Investment in corporate bonds
consists of both fixed and floating rate instruments.

The effective interest rate is the historical annual yield on fixed rate instruments carried at
amortised cost and the current market yield for a floating rate instrument or a short-term deposit.
The following table presents the effective rates of the financial instruments:

2018 2018 207 2017
Aggregate Effective Aggregate Effective
principal rate principal rate
Cash and short-term
deposits 13,813 2.27% 12,555 2.47%
Bonds and treasury bills 15,715 4.88% 12,406 5.30%

Derivatives:

The Group does not normally use derivative financial instruments, other than forward currency
contracts from time to time, to hedge its currency exposures.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates.

As protection against exchange rate fluctuations, the Group backs its insurance commitments to
a very large extent by funds in the same currency.
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32 INSURANCE CONTRACTS, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group has deposits and investments in currencies other than Bahraini dinars and United
States dollars. The Bahraini Dinar is effectively pegged to the United States dollar; thus, currency
risk is expected to occur only in respect of other currencies.

The Group's exposure to currency risk, other than United States dollars and Bahraini Dinars, as
well as the currency-wise concentration, expressed in the equivalent of Bahraini dinars is
summarised as follows:

Net currency-wise concentration

Financial Assets 2018 2017
Euros 678 367
Pounds sterling 258 231
Other currencies 100 244
Total open foreign exchange position at 31 December 1,036 842
United States dollars 28,631 26,400
GCC Currencies 11,322 10,472
Bahraini dinars 33,535 31,214
74,524 68,928
This comptrises of:
Financial investments 31,764 29,839
Equity accounted investees 17,633 16,934
Cash and cash equivalents 11,181 3,097
Placements with banks 3,497 9,333
Statutory deposits 125 125
Receivables:
Policyholders 4,357 2,970
Insurance and reinsurance companies 4,402 5,000
Others 1,565 1,630
74,524 68,928
Financial Liabilities 2018 2017
Bahraini dinars 10,045 7,838
United States dollars 403 1,288
GCC Currencies 1,176 358
Pounds sterling 50 19
Euros 6 43
Other currencies 15 13
11,695 9,559
This comprises of:
Policyholders liabilities 288 159
Insurance/reinsurance companies payables 4,311 3.814
Other payables 7,096 5,586
11,695 9,559
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32 INSURANCE CONTRACTS, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The assets and liabilities above were translated at exchange rates at the reporting date.
The nature of the Group’s exposures to currency risk and its objectives, policies and processes
for managing currency risk have not changed significantly from the prior period.

Sensitivity analysis — currency risk

A 1% weakening/strengthening of the Bahrain Dinars against the following currencies would have
increased/ (decreased) equity and profit and loss by the amounts shown below.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

2018 2017

Financial assets and liabilities Profit or ) Profit or .

loss Equity loss Equity
US Dollars 103 275 84 251
GCC currencies 88 109 75 101
Euro 2 7 - 3
Pounds Sterling - 2 - 2
Other currencies - 1 1 2

Sensitivity analysis to market risks

The table below shows the results of sensitivity testing on the Group’s statement of profit or loss
and equity by type of business. The sensitivity analysis indicates the effect of changes in market
risk factors arising from the impact of the changes in these factors on the Group's financial assets

and liabilities and its insurance assets and liabilities.

2018 2017

Profit or : Profit or .
31 December loss Equity loss Equity
Interest rate risk
+ {1 percent shift in yield curves 106 830 106 879
- 1 percent shift in yield curves (1086) (830) (106) (879)
Equity price risk
+1 percent increases in equity prices 4 88 4 85
-1 percent decrease in equity prices {4) {88) (4) (85)
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33 MATURITY PROFILE OF INVESTMENTS

Less than |1 -5 years|5 - 10 years| Over 10 Total
2018 1 year years / no
maturity
Equities - - - 8,395 8,395
Government bonds and treasury
bills 1,994 3,246 998 148 6,386
Corporate bonds 453 5,011 259 1,749 7,472
Managed funds - - - 4,717 4,717
Unquoted equities & funds - - - 2,828 2,828
Equity accounted investees - - - 17,633 17,633
2,447 8,257 1,257 35,470 47,431
This balance comprises of:
2018
Available-for-sale securities 25,809
Held-to-maturity securities 3,989
Equity accounted investees 17,633
47,431
Less than 1|1 -5 years |5 - 10 years| Over 10 Total
2017 year years / no
maturity
Equities - - - 8,354 8,354
Government bonds - 4,081 1,003 149 5,233
Corporate bonds 151 4,365 502 1,583 6,601
Managed funds - - - 5,469 5,469
Unquoted equities & funds - - - 2,576 2,576
Equity accounted investees - - . 16,934 16,934
151 8,446 1,505 35,065 45,167
This balance comprises of;
207
Available-for-sale securities 23,933
Held-to-maturity securities 4,300
Equity accounted investess 16,934
45,167

Managed funds not having a fixed maturity date are classified as maturing after ten years.

Securities carried at fair value through profit or loss are readily realisable and intended to be held for
short term purposes. These are not included in the above maturity profile of investments.
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34 GEOGRAPHICAL CONCENTRATION OF INVESTMENTS

2018 2017
Bahrain 23,722 21,478
Other GCC countries 13,585 12,562
North America 5,437 6,810
Europe 3,778 2,509
China and India 1,339 1,243
Other global/multi-regional 1,526 2,160
49,397 46,773
This comprises of:
2018 2017
Securities carried at fair value through profit or loss 1,966 1,606
Available-for-sale securities 25,809 23,933
Held-to-maturity securities 3,089 4,300
Equity accounted investees 17,633 16,934
49,397 46,773
Investment income by segment
2018 2017
Bahraini listed equities 327 317
Other equities 620 274
Bonds and treasury bills 740 632
Managed funds 345 517
Bank balances and short-term deposits 335 339
Investment properties 376 319
Gross investment income 2,743 2,398
Investment administration expenses {50) (60)
Policyholders’ share of net investment income {65) (221)
Depreciation charges on investment properties (163) {168)
Cther investment properties’ expenses (146) (60)
Net investment income 2,319 1,889
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35

RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

Related parties include transactions with associate companies, key management personnel including
Directors of the Company and other companies in which the Directors control.

The related party transactions and balances included in these consolidated financial statements are as

follows:

a) Related party balances

Companies
: Key .
Parent’s in which

2018 . management . Total

associates Directors

personnel
control
Insurance receivables 597 1 345 943
Retirement and saving plan obligation 609 - 67 676
Insurance payables - - 12 12
Other liabilities - - 1,181 1,181
. Key Compa_nles in
Parent’s which

2017 . management . Total

associates Directors

personnel
control
Insurance receivables 363 2 130 495
Retirement and saving plan obligation 504 - 57 561
Insurance payables 2 - - 2
Other liabilities - - 951 951
b) Transactions with related parties
r Companies
2018 Associates | Y management | in which Total
personnel Directors
control

Grosg insurance 289 9 1,342 1,640
premiums
Gross claims paid 203 2 166 371
Retirement and saving
plan contributions 118 - 9 127
received
Retirement and saving
plan benefits paid & ) Ul e
Cor it . 742 120 861
administration expenses
Purchase of equipment - - 389 389
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35 RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Companies
2017 Associates | <6y management | in which Total
personnel Directors
control
Gros§ insurance 231 7 1,313 1,551
premiums
Gross claims paid 128 2 1,350 1,480
Retirement and saving
plan contributions 108 - 4 | 112
received !
Retirement and 'sawng 8 ) 24 | 29
plan benefits paid .
Gent_erlal an_d - 768 120 888
administration expenses
Purchase of equipment - - 49 49

c) Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Group comprise of the Chief Executive Officer, Board of
Directors and key members of management having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

The key management personnel compensation is as follows:

2018 2017
Salaries and allowances 578 573
Other benefits 46 79
Board remuneration and attendance fees paid 118 116
Board remuneration and attendance fees provision 106 108

36 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participant at the measurement date in the principle or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability
reflects its non-performance risk.

The table below sels out the Group's classification of each class of financial assets and liabilities, and their
fair values.
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36 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Fair value
through Total
2018 the Available-| Held-to- | Loans and | Financial carrying | Fair value
statement| for- sale | maturity [receivables| liability value
of profit
or loss
Cash and cash
equivalents - - - 11,181 - 11,181 11,181
Placements with
banks - - - 3,497 - 3,497 3,497
Insurance and other |
receijvables - - - 10,324 - 10,324 10,324
Financial
investments 1,966 25,809 3,989 - - 31,764 31,811
Total financial
assets 1,966 25,809 3,989 25,002 - 56,766 56,813
Insurance payables S 5 & S 4,599 4,599 4,599
Other liabilities S - - . 7.096 7,096 7,096
Total financial
liabilities - - - - 11,695 11,695 11,695
Fair value
through Total
2017 the Available- | Held-to- | Loans and | Financial carrying | Fair value
statement | for-sale | maturity |receivables| liability
value
of profit or
loss
Cash and cash ;
equivalents - - - 3,097 - 3,097 3,097
Placements with
banks - - - 9,333 - 9,333 9,333
Insurance and other
receivables - - - 9,428 - 9,428 9,428
Financial |
investments 1,606 23,933 4,300 - - 29,839 29,991
Total financial
assets 1,606 23,933 4,300 21,858 - 51,697 51,849
Insurance payables | - - B 2 3,973 3,973 3,973
Other liabilities S K = - 5,586 5,586 5,586
Total financial
liabilities - - - - 9,559 9,559 9,559

Fair value hierarchy
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on

quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments, the Group
determines fair values using other valuation techniques.
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36 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less
objective, and requires varying degrees of judgment depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty
of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements:

= Level1
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

= Level2

inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

= Level3

inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation
technigue includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a
significant effect on the instrument's valuation,

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Group considers relevant
and observable market prices in its valuations where possible.

2018 Carrying
Level1 | Level2 | Level 3 Total Value

Available-for-sale investments 22,981 2,650 - 25,631 25,631

Securities carried at fair value through profit

or loss 1,870 96 - 1,966 1,966
24,851 2,746 - | 27,597 | 27,597

2017 Carrying
Level 1 Level2 | Level 3 Total Value

Available-for-sale investments 21,357 2,400 - | 23,757 | 23,757

Securities carried at fair value through profit

or loss 1,530 76 - 1,606 1,606
22,887 2,476 - | 25363 | 25,363

During the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and 2, also there were no transfers out of, or
into, the level 3 measurement classification.

The carrying amount of the Group's held-lo-maturity investments equals BD 3,989 thousand
(2017: BD 4,300 thousand) whereas the fair value of the investments is BD 4,036 thousand
(2017: BD 4,452 thousand). The investments in available-for-sale securities include investment in
unlisted equity securities and managed funds carried at cost and having carrying value of
BD 178 thousand (2017: BD 176 thousand} and BD 5 thousand (2016: BD 5 thousand} respectively.

The carrying amount of the Group's other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values
due to their short-term nature.
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37 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has commitments to make investments amounting to
BD 337 thousand (2017: BD 391 thousand).

The Group is a defendant in a number of cases brought by third parties in respect of insurance liabilities
which the company disputes. While it is not possible to predict the eventual outcome of such legal
actions, the Group has made provision which, in their opinion, is adequate.

38 COMPARATIVE

Certain corresponding figures of 2017 have been regrouped where necessary to conform to the current

year's presentation. Such regrouping did not affect previously reported total assets, total liabilities, equity,
profit or loss or comprehensive income.
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